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This audit report and the financial statementsthat arereferred
to herein have been translated from the original documents
prepared in the Greek language. The audit report has been
issued with respect to the Greek language financial statements
and in the event that differences exist between the trandated
financial statements and the original Greek language financial
statements, the Greek language financial statements will
prevail.

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of “AKTOR SA”
Report on the Separate and Consolidated Financialt&tements

We have audited the accompanying separate andlmated financial statements of AKTOR SA which caiap

the separate and consolidated statement of finapoisition as of 31 December 2014 and the sepaatk
consolidated income statement and statement of i@mapsive income, statement of changes in equdycash
flow statement for the year then ended ansummary of significant accounting policies ankdeotexplanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Separate and Gwolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation aitdpfesentation of these separate and consolidaiedcial
statements in accordance with International FirenReporting Standards, as adopted by the Europeson,
and for such internal control as management detesnis necessary to enable the preparation of atepand
consolidated financial statements that are freen frwaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud @rer

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hegparate and consolidated financial statemesesdban our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance witkrhational Standards on Auditing. Those standezdsire
that we comply with ethical requirements and plad aerform the audit to obtain reasonable assuraboet
whether the separate and consolidated financitdratents are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtairdia evidence about the amounts and disclosurethean
separate and consolidated financial statements. prbheedures selected depend on the auditor's judgme
including the assessment of the risks of materigdstatement of the separate and consolidated fi@mlanc
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In ntakiose risk assessments, the auditor considenaitcontrol
relevant to the preparation and fair presentatibthe separate and consolidated financial stat&sriarorder to
design audit procedures that are appropriate igitcamstances, but not for the purpose of expngsan opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control. An aualgo includes evaluating the appropriateness obuating
policies used and the reasonableness of accouestignates made by management, as well as evaluiiing
overall presentation of the separate and conselidfithancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtaimedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisdur audit
opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the separate and consolidated €igrstatements present fairly, in all materialpexgs, the
financial position of AKTOR SA and its subsidiarias at December 31, 2014, and their financial perdmce

and cash flows for the year then ended in accoeaiith International Financial Reporting Standaatsadopted
by the European Union.

Reference on Other Legabnd Regulatory Matters

We verified the conformity and consistency of théormation given in the Board of Directors’ repavith the
accompanying separate and consolidated financitdrsents in accordance with the requirements wiest43a,
108 and 37 of Codified Law 2190/1920.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Athens, 19 May 2015

.

pwc
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Statement of Financial Position

All amounts in Euro thousands.

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates and joint ventures
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Prepayments for long-term leases
Other non-current receivables

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Note

© N o O

10

25
13
16

15
16

Prepayments for long-term leases (current portion)13

Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets

EQUITY

Attributable to owner’s of the parent
Share capital

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Grants

Other non-current liabilities
Other non-current provisions

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current income tax liabilities

Short-term borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Other current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

17
18

19

20
20
21

22
25
26
23
24
27

24

22

27

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13* _ 1-Jan-13* 31-Dec-14 _ 31-Dec-13* _ 1-Jan-13*
147,901 135,312 146,101 90,291 74,730 79,958
13,206 13,377 11,304 895 672 682
- - 7,816 - - 7,816
- - - 107,508 107,508 104,437
4,403 9,207 5,015 2,226 2,445 2,317
77,436 63,325 144,545 69 159 83
3,267 8,338 1,244 2,802 7,811 475
792 339 - 792 339 -
21,406 1,731 3,764 20,480 1,556 3,562
268,410 231,630 319,789 225,063 195,220 199,330
30,237 32,172 39,399 19,419 17,605 25,391
952,146 780,956 847,675 1,027,084 838,397 900,571
62 62 - 62 62 -
15,185 19,190 19,131 14,769 16,158 12,609
181,020 227,186 117,774 140,549 199,820 93,857
1,178,650 1,059,567 1,023,979 1,201,884 1,072,044 1,032,427
- 4,516 - - 4,516 -
1,178,650 1,064,083 1,023,979 1,201,884 1,076,560 1,032,427
1,447,060 1,295,713 1,343,768 1,426,947 1,271,780 1,231,758
139,747 139,747 139,747 139,747 139,747 139,747
72,789 72,789 72,789 72,789 72,789 72,789
155,141 95,133 180,915 151,865 159,212 159,949
6,581 41,122 24,497 105,696 93,560 75,795
374,258 348,792 417,949 470,097 465,309 448,280
1,018 1,259 1,627 - - -
375,277 350,051 419,576 470,097 465,309 448,280
55,156 53,958 18,637 45,698 45,951 979
8,874 7,504 9,361 2,161 1,258 3,789
5,153 4,316 5,873 4,343 3,619 5,081
2,746 2,914 2,480 310 329 350
46,356 7,863 4,161 46,352 1,843 3,564
3,629 2,218 1,429 2,042 1,099 535
121,914 78,773 41,941 100,905 54,099 14,299
787,756 740,807 715,026 725,692 644,218 612,215
6,793 6,279 2,030 4,931 5,951 1,668
120,086 83,049 130,205 90,935 66,229 120,897
225 - . 225 . -
35,009 36,754 34,991 34,161 35,974 34,399
949,869 866,888 882,251 855,944 752,372 769,179
1,071,784 945,662 924,192 956,849 806,471 783,477
1,447,060  1,295713 1,343,768 1,426,947 1,271,780 1,231,758

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesiefmote 2.2.2). The notes on pages 12 to 81 agriak part

of these financial statements.
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Income Statement

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income/(expenses) — net
Operating profit/(loss)

Dividend income

Share of profit/(loss) of associates & joint vestir
Finance income

Finance (costs)

Profit before tax

Income tax

Net profit/(loss) for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

Note

28

28
28
29

10
30
30

32

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to 'Jan to
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
1,163,790 899,968 950,236 707,816
(1,119,384) (832,304) (928,548) (653,405)
44,406 67,664 21,688 54,411
(151) (2,024) (58) (233)
(34,177) (27,858) (23,105) (20,831)
(42,514) (2,932) 9,870 326
(32,435) 34,850 8,395 33,674
- - 5,045 -
(362) (420) - -
3,155 6,477 2,972 5,230
(11,916) (13,789) (10,124) (11,996)
(41,558) 27,118 6,288 26,907
(5,153) (10,443) (1,865) (9,141)
(46,711) 16,676 4,422 17,765
(47,406) 16,522 4,422 17,765
695 154 - -
(46,711) 16,676 4,422 17,765

The notes on pages 12 to 81 an integral part sktfieancial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to T Janto
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Net profit/(loss) for the year Note (46,711) 16,676 4,422 17,765
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss
Foreign exchange differences 5,512 (3,123) 1,179 (1,379)
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for sale
financial assets 12.21 68,269 (83,012) (90) 384
Cash flow hedge (225) - (225) -
73,556 (86,135) 864 (995)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or lass
Actuarial gains/(losses) (568) 332 (490) 258
Other - (34) - -
(568) 298 (490) 258
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year
(net of tax) 72,988 (85,837) 374 (737)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss ) for the year 26,277 (69,161) 4,796 17,028
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Parent 25,543 (69,323) 4,796 17,028
Non-controlling interests 734 161 - -
Total 26,277 (69,161) 4,796 17,028

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

Other Comprehensive Income is disclosed in the alstatement net, after taxes.
items included in Other Comprehensive Income isgmeed in Note 32.

The notes on pages 12 to 81 an integral part sktfieancial statements.

(8) / (81)
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Statement of Changes in Equity

GROUP

All amounts in Euro thousands.

1 January 2013
Net profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange differences
Fair value gains/(losses) on available
for sale financial assets

Actuarial gains/(losses)

Other

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
for the year (net of tax)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss )
for the year

Transfer to reserves
Dividend distribution

Effect of changes in interests held in
other subsidiaries

31 December 2013

1 January 2014
Net profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange differences
Fair value gains/(losses) on available
for sale financial assets

Reclassification adjustment of
available-for-sale financial assets
reserve due to impairment of
investment in mining companies

Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow
hedge
Actuarial gains/(losses)

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)
for the year (net of tax)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss )
for the year
Transfer to reserves

Effect of changes in interests held in
other subsidiaries

Other

31 December 2014

Note

21

21
21

21

21

21

14
21

21

Share Share Other Retained controlling
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests Total
139,747 72,789 180,915 24,497 417,949 1,627 419,576

- - - 16,522 16,522 154 16,676

- - (3,127) - (3,127) 3 (3,123)

- - (83,012) - (83,012 - (83,012)

- - 328 - 328 4 332

- - - (34) (34) - (34)

- - (85,811) (34 (85,844) 7 (85,837)

- - (85,811) 16,488 (69,323) 161  (69,161)

- - 29 (29) - - -

- - - - - (74) (74)

- - - 166 166 (455) (290)

- - 29 137 166 (529) (363)
139,747 72,789 95,133 41,122 348,792 1,259 350,051
139,747 72,789 95,133 41,122 348,792 1,259 350,051

- - - (47,406)  (47,406) 695  (46,711)

- - 5,473 - 5,473 39 5,512

- - 22,694 - 22,694 - 22,694

- - 45,575 - 45,575 - 45,575

(225) - (225) - (225)

- - (568) - (568) - (568)

- - 72,949 - 72,949 39 72,988

- - 72,949 (47,406) 25,543 734 26,277

- - (12,941) 12,941 - y .

- - - (69) (69) (975) (1,044)

- - - @) ) - @)

- - (12,941) 12,865 (76) (975)  (1,051)
139,747 72,789 155,141 6,581 374,258 1,019 375,277

Change in Other reserves attributable to assodiate€¥2014 and FY2013 is immaterial.
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COMPANY

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Note
1 January 2013*
Net profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange differences 21
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for
sale financial assets 21

Actuarial gains/(losses) 21

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for
the year (net of tax)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss ) for
the year

31 December 2013*

1 January 2014
Net profit/(loss) for the year
Other Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange differences 21
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for
sale financial assets 21

Fair value gains/(losses) on cash flow
hedge

Actuarial gains/(losses) 21

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for
the year (net of tax)

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss ) for
the year

Transfer to reserves 21
Other

31 December 2014

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves earnings Total
139,747 72,789 159,949 75,795 448,280

- - - 17,765 17,765

- - (1,379) - (1,379)

- - 384 - 384

- - 258 - 258

- - (737) - (737)

- - (737) 17,765 17,028
139,747 72,789 159,212 93,560 465,308
139,747 72,789 159,212 93,560 465,308

- - - 4,422 4,422

- - 1,179 - 1,179

- - (90) - (90)

- - (225) - (225)

- - (490) - (490)

- - 374 - 374

- - 374 4,422 4,796

- - (7,721) 7,721 -

- - - (7 )

- - (7,721) 7,713 (7)
139,747 72,789 151,865 105,696 470,097

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

The notes on pages 12 to 81 form an integral gahese financial statements.
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Cash flow statement

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
01.01.2014 - 01.01.2013 - 01.01.2014 - 01.01.2013 -

Note 31.12.2014 31.12.2013* 31.12.2014 31.12.2013*
Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax (41,558) 27,118 6,288 26,907
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5,6,7,23 21,733 20,629 16,370 15,192
Impairment of investment property - 3,194 - 3,194
Impairment of investment in mining companies 54,158 - - -
Provisions (334) 298 (870) (116)
Foreign exchange differences 5,189 (2,763) 796 (1,140)
Profit/(loss) from investing activities (income penses, gains &
losses) (3,753) (5,830) (8,159) (5,130)
Interest and related expenses 30 11,590 14,480 10,022 12,392
Impairment provisions and write-offs 29 - 9,931 - 9,379
Plus/minus working capital adjustments relatedierating
activities:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 6,451 7,227 2,703 7,785
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable (163,018) 61,851 (169,218) 56,047
(Decrease)/increase in liabilities (except borr@sin 84,063 29,340 125,822 30,602
Less:
Interest and related expenses paid (11,213) (15,159) (9,078) (13,747)
Income taxes paid (25,699) (14,856) (25,145) (13,613)
Net cash flows from operating activities (a) (62,389) 135,460 (50,469) 127,752
Investing activities
(Acquisitions)/Disposals of subsidiaries, assosial®/s and other
investments 4,166 (9,175) 46 (2,212)
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets andtiment
property (36,333) (13,261) (33,782) (11,902)
Proceeds from sales of PPE and intangible asseétsagstment
property 3,622 2,147 2,173 1,367
Interest received 3,531 6,201 2,834 4,915
Loans (granted to)/loan repayments received frasn@ates (496) - (8,757) (369)
Dividends received - - 3,350 -
Restricted cash 17 4,006 (59) 1,389 (3,549)
Net cash flows from investing activities (b) (21,504) (14,148) (32,746) (11,750)
Einancing activities
Expenses on issue of share capital - (31) - -
Proceeds from borrowings 154,731 151,050 129,455 150,237
Repayment of borrowings (116,450) (162,832) (105,312) (160,076)
Repayments of finance leases (554) (545) (199) (199)
Dividends paid - (55) - -
Dividend tax paid - (53) - -
Grants received 23 - 567 - -
Net cash flows from financing activities (c) 37,727 (11,901) 23,944 (10,038)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalefar the
year (a)+(b)+(c) (46,166) 109,412 (59,271) 105,963
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18 227,186 117,774 199,820 93,857
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 18 181,020 227,186 140,549 199,820

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesiefmote 2.2.2). The notes on pages 12 to 81 agriak part
of these financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements

1 General Information

The Group operates via its subsidiaries, mainlyhim construction & quarry sectors. The interests hg the
Group are presented in note 8. The Group operbtsides Greece, in countries of the Middle East ance
specifically in the United Arabic Emirates, Qatlywait, as well as in other countries, includinglyt Cyprus,
Romania, Bulgaria, Albania, Serbia, Turkey, Bodhiaegovina, FYROM, USA, United Kingdom, Chile and
Panama.

The Company was incorporated and is based in Gré&éeeaddress of its registered office and headegsais 25
Ermou St., 14564, Kifissia, Attiki.

AKTOR SA is a subsidiary of ELLAKTOR SA (100%) whigs listed on the Athens Stock Exchange.

These financial statements were approved by thedBoBDirectors on 31 March 2015 and are subjedhw®
approval of the General Meeting of shareholdergyTdre available on the company’s website at: wktoragr

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The main accounting principles applied for the pregion of these financial statements are preseinétalv.
These principles have been applied with consistefiocyall the financial periods presented, excepattest
otherwise.

These separate and consolidated financial statenfeve been prepared in accordance with the Irtenah
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Im&dghions of the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as adopted by Huropean Union, and IFRS issued by the Intermatio
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financiatements have been prepared under the historicdl co
convention, except for the financial assets avildbr sale and at fair value through profit andslavhich are
valued at fair value.

The preparation of the financial statements unéi&S requires management to use accounting estiraatks
assumptions in implementing the accounting poliei@spted. The areas involving a higher degreedygment or
complexity, or other assumptions and estimates havgignificant impact on the financial statements a
mentioned in Note 4.

2.1.1 Going Concern

The financial statements as of 31 December 2014pgepared in accordance with the International iéred
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and provide a reasonaesentation of the financial position, profit aods, and
cash flows of the Group and Company, in accordavittethe principle of going concern.

2.1.2. Macroeconomic conditions in Greece

After six years of economic depression, during Whike Group faced significant challenges and itevities
suffered a severe contraction, in 2014 there weneessigns of improvement with GDP growing, for finst time
since 2008, by +0.8%. This improvement is refledtethe Group's and the Company's increased turndw
also in the short-lived improvement in the fundafghe Greek companies in general (e.g. throughstheance of
Greek corporate and bank bonds in internationaketsy, and the Group in particular.

However, the political developments towards the e@id2014 and the discussions held at national and
international level in the beginning of 2015 regagdthe review of the terms of the financing pragnae for
Greece create a volatile macroeconomic and finhaoidronment in the country. The return to ecorostability
depends to a great extent on the actions and desigif institutional bodies both in Greece and abrorhe
current economic environment constitutes a key faior for the Company and the Group. Any negative
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developments as well as the resulting uncertaimtiis regards may have negative impact on the @oxip and
Group's operations, as well as on their finan@allts, financial position and their future progpec

More specifically, any negative developments deelyi to severely impact:

e The recoverability of trade and other receivables

The completion of projects in progress

Sales of goods and services

The Company's and the Group's ability to repayetinance the maturing debt
The recoverability or the value of tangible andngible assets

The developments that could have a negative impacthe Greek economy are beyond the Company's and
Group's control and Management is not in the pmsito foresee them and predict their impact. Howeve
Management regularly assesses the situation andateatial impact so as to ensure that all the ssary and
feasible measures and actions are implementeddier @ minimise any potential impact on the Compmiaynd
Group's operations.

2.2 New standards, amendments to standards and interptations:

Certain new standards, amendments to standardsngergretations have been issued that are mandébory
periods beginning during the current financial yaad subsequent years. The Group’s evaluationeoéffect of
these new standards, amendments to standardstartétations is as follows:

2.2.1 Standards and Interpretations effective for e current financial year that do not have signifiant
impact on the Financial Statements of the Group anthe Company

IAS 32 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Presentadion”

This amendment to the application guidance in |2 rifies some of the requirements for offsettiimgancial
assets and financial liabilities on the stateméffinancial position.

IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”

IFRS 10 replaces all of the guidance on control eodsolidation in IAS 27 and SIC 12. The new statda
changes the definition of control for the purpogedetermining which entities should be consolidatétis
definition is supported by extensive applicationdgmce that addresses the different ways in whichparting
entity (investor) might control another entity (@stee). The revised definition of control focusasttee need to
have both power (the current ability to direct éutivities that significantly influence returns)davariable returns
(can be positive, negative or both) before conisopresent. The new standard also includes guidamce
participating and protective rights, as well asagency/ principal relationships.

IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”

IFRS 12 requires entities to disclose informatiojuding significant judgments and assumptionsicivienable
users of financial statements to evaluate the aatigks and financial effects associated withehgty's interests
in subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangementuandnsolidated structured entities. An entity peavide any or
all of the above disclosures without having to @RS 12 in its entirety, or IFRS 10 or 11, or Hreended IAS
27 or 28.

IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate Financial Statements”

This Standard is issued concurrently with IFRS &6 #gether, the two IFRSs supersede IASQ@adnsolidated
and Separate Financial Statement¥he amended IAS 27 prescribes the accountingdautbsure requirements
for investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures asdociates when an entity prepares separate falatatements.
At the same time, the Board relocated to IAS 27iregnents from IAS 28Ihvestments in Associateghd IAS
31 “Interests in Joint Venturegegarding separate financial statements.
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IAS 28 (Amendment) “Investments in Associates andaint Ventures”

IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Venturesjilaces IAS 28 Ifivestments in AssociatesThe
objective of this Standard is to prescribe the moting for investments in associates and to set that
requirements for the application of the equity roetiwhen accounting for investments in associatesjaimt
ventures, following the issue of IFRS 11.

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 (Amendment) “Consolided financial statements, joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other entities: Transiton guidance”

The amendment to the transition requirements irS6-R0, 11 and 12 clarifies the transition guidand&RS 10
and limits the requirements to provide comparainfermation for IFRS 12 disclosures only to theipédrthat
immediately precedes the first annual period of3FR application. Comparative disclosures are emaired for
interests in unconsolidated structured entities.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Amendment) “Investmenéntities”

The amendment to IFRS 10 defines an investmentyeantid introduces an exception from consolidatidany
funds and similar entities that qualify as investinentities will be exempt from consolidating madttheir
subsidiaries, which will be accounted for at faatue through profit or loss, although controlletieTamendments
to IFRS 12 introduce disclosures that an investreatity needs to make.

IAS 36 (Amendment) “Recoverable amount disclosuref®r non-financial assets”

This amendment requires: This amendment requijedisalosure of the recoverable amount of an amseash
generating unit (CGU) when an impairment loss feenlrecognised or reversed and b) detailed digeadthow
the fair value less costs of disposal has beenunegisvhen an impairment loss has been recognisesversed.
Also, it removes the requirement to disclose recaivle amount when a CGU contains goodwill or inafédi
lived intangible assets but there has been no nmest.

IAS 39 (Amendment) “Financial Instruments: Recogniton and Measurement”
This amendment will allow hedge accounting to ammi in a situation where a derivative, which hasnbe

designated as a hedging instrument, is novateffdotelearing with a central counterparty as aiitesf laws or
regulations, if specific conditions are met.

2.2.2 Standards and Interpretations effective fortlie current financial year that have significant imgact on
the Financial Statements of the Group

IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”

IFRS 11 superseded IAS 31 (Interests in Joint fesjuand SIC 13 (Jointly Controlled Entities - Ndionetary
Contributions by Venturers) and determines howtjamangements must be classified when two or marges
have joint control. The types of joint arrangememts reduced to two: joint operations and jointtuess. The
classification depends upon the rights and obligetiof the parties to the arrangement, taking dotasideration
the structure and form of the arrangement, thedeagreed by the parties in the contractual arrargemvhere
relevant, and other facts and circumstances.
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A joint operationis a joint arrangement whereby the parties (opesathat have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the assets and obligations foriti#lities, relating to the arrangement. Joint @pers account for
the assets and liabilities (as well as revenuesapdnses) relating to their involvement in thataiperation.

A joint ventureis a joint arrangement whereby the parties (jaiehturers) that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of tamgement. Joint ventures are accounted for usiageguity
method (proportional consolidation is no longeowaitd).

In the past, according to IAS 31, the Group acocedifibr joint arrangements in which it participategsing the
proportional consolidation method. An exceptiorthis approach were any joint arrangements eithettive on
the date of first IFRS adoption or insignificanthish were consolidated using the equity method.aBgpting
IFRS 11, the Group and the Company continue cattesiiig joint arrangements which are either inactive
insignificant using the equity consolidation methodil the dissolution of these arrangements.

In light of the changes regarding the types of tjiarrangements and the consolidation methods, teis
reviewed the joint arrangements in which it papiétes.

The most significant joint arrangements in whicle tBroup participates refer to joint venture corcttom
contracts. These joint arrangements are class#fgegbint operations as their legal form providestipa with
direct rights on assets and obligations for théilitées. According to IFRS 11, joint operationseanow
incorporated in the financial statements of the Upras well as in the separate financial statemehtshe
Company according the Group's and the Companyte shadhe assets, liabilities, revenues and exmeokthese
arrangements. The adoption of this standard dichawé significant impact on the Group’s financi@tements.
In note 8c are presented in detail the Group'sesharthe joint operations in which it participates

In contrast to the Group, the Company's separasndial statements were significantly affectedthes now
incorporate the Company's share in the assetdjtledy revenues and expenses of the joint opamatpresented
in note 8.c. Any transactions and balances betvieenrCompany and its joint operations are eliminat&ue
Company recognises only the share of the otheregaid the joint operation in the profit or loserfr its sales to
joint operations. The Company does not recognigesiitare in profit or losses from its purchases fjoimt
operations until the assets acquired are soldhodparty.

The new standard is applied retrospectively andctdfthe comparative information provided in therpany's
and the Group's financial statements (restateddgjults impact is shown in the following tables:
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Statement of Financial Position 01.01.2013

All amounts in Euro thousands.

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in associates & joint ventures

Investments in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current receivables

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
EQUITY

Attributable to owner’s of the parent

Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings

Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Grants

Other non-current liabilities

Other non-current provisions

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Current income tax liabilities
Short-term borrowings

Other current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Note

222
12
25
16

15
16
17
18

20
20
21

22
25
26
23
24
27

24

22
27

GROUP

COMPANY

1-Jan-13  Restated due  1-Jan-13 1-Jan-13  Restated due 1-Jan-13
Published to IFRS 11 Restated Published to IFRS 11 Restated
figures amendment figures figures amendment figures
146,101 - 146,101 71,334 8,625 79,958
11,304 - 11,304 669 13 682
7,816 - 7,816 7,816 - 7,816
- - - 104,437 - 104,437
2,270 2,745 5,015 1,477 841 2,317
1,141 (1,141) - 2,338 (2,338) -
144,545 - 144,545 81 3 83
1,244 - 1,244 - 475 475
3,764 - 3,764 2,786 776 3,562
318,185 1,604 319,789 190,937 8,394 199,330
39,399 - 39,399 23,525 1,866 25,391
849,262 (1,588) 847,675 789,346 111,225 900,571
19,131 - 19,131 12,609 - 12,609
117,795 (20) 117,774 61,373 32,483 93,857
1,025,587 (1,608) 1,023,979 886,853 145,575 1,032,427
1,343,773 4) 1,343,768 1,077,789 153,968 1,231,758
139,747 - 139,747 139,747 - 139,747
72,789 - 72,789 72,789 - 72,789
180,915 - 180,915 160,482 (533) 159,949
24,497 - 24,497 54,203 21,592 75,795
417,949 - 417,949 427,221 21,059 448,280
1,627 1,627 - - -
419,576 - 419,576 427,221 21,059 448,280
18,637 - 18,637 979 - 979
9,361 - 9,361 3,924 (135) 3,789
5,873 - 5,873 4,406 675 5,081
2,480 - 2,480 350 - 350
4,161 - 4,161 972 2,592 3,564
1,429 - 1,429 520 15 535
41,941 - 41,941 11,152 3,147 14,299
715,031 4) 715,026 497,552 114,663 612,215
2,030 - 2,030 792 876 1,668
130,205 - 130,205 110,573 10,324 120,897
34,991 - 34,991 30,499 3,900 34,399
882,256 4) 882,251 639,416 129,762 769,179
924,197 4) 924,192 650,568 132,909 783,477
1,343,773 4 1,343,768 1,077,789 153,968 1,231,758
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Statement of Financial Position 31.12.2013

All amounts in Euro thousands.

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investment property

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates & joint
ventures

Investments in joint ventures

Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Prepayments for long-term leases
Other non-current receivables

Current assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments for long-term leases
(current portion)

Restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Non-current assets held for sale

Total assets
EQUITY

Attributable to owner’s of the parent

Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Retirement benefit obligations
Grants

Other non-current liabilities
Other non-current provisions

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Current income tax liabilities

Short-term borrowings
Other current liabilities

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-13  Restated due 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 Restated due 31-Dec-13
Published to IFRS 11 Restated Published to IFRS 11 Restated
Note figures amendment figures figures amendment figures
5 135,312 - 135,312 67,666 7,064 74,730
6 13,377 - 13,377 662 10 672
7 - - - - 0 0
9 - - - 107,508 0 107,508
10 6,243 2,964 9,207 1,477 969 2,445
222 1,265 (1,265) 0 2,447 -2,447 .
12 63,325 - 383, 156 3 159
25 8,338 - 8,338 7,800 11 7,811
13 339 339 - 339 339
16 1,731 - 1,731 311 1,245 1,556
229,930 1,699 231,630 188,026 7,194 195,220
15 32,172 - 32,172 16,540 1,066 17,605
16 782,632 (1,676) 9580, 787,371 51,027 838,397
13 62 - 62 - 62 62
17 19,190 - 19,190 16,158 - 16,158
18 227,206 (20) 227,186 106,975 92,845 199,820
1,061,263 (1,696) 1,059,567 927,044 145,000 1,072,044
19 4,516 4,516 4,516 - 4,516
1,065,780 (1,696) 1,064,084 931,560 145,000 1,076,560
1,295,710 3 1,295,713 1,119,586 152,193 1,271,780
20 139,747 - 139,747 139,747 - 139,747
20 72,789 - 72,789 72,789 - 72,789
21 95,133 - 95,133 158,472 740 159,212
41,122 - 41,122 73,042 20,519 93,560
348,792 - 348,792 444,050 21,259 465,309
1,259 - 1,259 - - -
350,051 - 350,051 444,050 21,259 465,309
22 53,958 - 53,958 45,951 - 45,951
25 7,504 - 7,504 - 1,258 1,258
26 4,316 - 4,316 3,619 - 3,619
23 2,914 - 2,914 329 - 329
24 7,863 - 7,863 149 1,695 1,843
27 2,218 - 2,218 1,099 - 1,099
78,773 - 78,773 51,146 2,953 54,099
24 740,804 3 740,807 528,679 115,539 644,218
6,279 - 6,279 4,547 1,404 5,951
22 83,049 - 83,049 58,175 8,054 66,229
27 36,754 - 36,754 32,990 2,984 35,974
866,886 3 866,889 624,390 127,982 752,372
945,659 3 945,662 675,537 130,935 806,471
1,295,710 3 1,295,713 1,119,586 152,193 1,271,780
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Income Statement 2013
All amounts in Euro thousands.

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income/(expenses) — net
Profit/(Loss) from Joint Ventures
Operating profit/(loss)

Share of profit/(loss) of associates & joint
ventures

Finance income
Finance (costs)
Profit/(loss) before tax
Income tax

Net profit/(loss) for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent

Non-controlling interests

GROUP

COMPANY

31-Dec-13 Restated due 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 Restated due 31-Dec-13
Published to IFRS 11 Restated Published to IFRS 11 Restated
Note figures amendment figures figures amendment figures
899,968 - 899,968 581,105 126,711 707,816
28 (832,304) (832,304) (549,296) (104,109) (653,405)
67,664 - 67,664 31,809 22,603 54,411
28 (2,024) (2,024) (233) - (233)
28 (27,858) (27,858) (20,792) (38) (20,831)
29 (2,932) - (2,932) 5,502 (5,176) 326
95 (95) - 14,638 (14,638) -
34,945 - 34,945 30,923 2,750 33,674
10 (515) 95 (420) - - -
30 6,894 6,894 3,017 2,213 5,230
30 (14,205) (14,205) (11,039) (958) (11,996)
27,118 - 27,118 22,901 4,006 26,907
32 (10,443) - (10,443) (4,149) (4,992) (9,141)
16|676 - 16,676 18,752 (987) 17,765
16,522 - 16,522 18,752 (987) 17,765
154 - 154 - -
16.676 - 16,676 18.752 (987) 17,765
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Cash flow Statement 2013
All amounts in Euro thousands. GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-13 Restated due 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-13 Restated due 31-Dec-13

Published  to IFRS 11 Restated Published to IFRS 11 Restated

Note figures amendment figures figures amendment figures
Operating activities
Profit/(loss) before tax 27,118 - 27,118 22,901 4,006 26,907
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 5,6,7,23 20,629 - 20,629 12,693 2,499 15,192
Impairment of investment property 3,194 - 3,194 3,194 - 3,194
Provisions 298 - 298 814 (931) (116)
Foreign exchange differences (2,763) - (2,763) (1,933) 792 (1,140)
Profit/(loss) frpm investing activities (income, (5,830) _ (5,830) (2,478) (2,651) (5,130)
expenses, gains & losses)
Interest and related expenses 30 14,480 - 14,480 11,039 1,354 12,392
Impairment provisions and write-offs 29 9,931 - 9,931 5,379 4,000 9,379
Plus/minus working capital adjustments
related to operating activities:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 7,227 - 7,227 6,985 800 7,785
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable 61,858 @) 61,851 (780) 56,827 56,047
E)Decregse)/mcrease in liabilities (except 29333 7 29340 30,303 208 30,602
orrowings)

Less:
Interest and related expenses paid (15,159) - (15,159) (12,392) (1,355) (13,747)
Income taxes paid (14,856) - (14,856) (8,964) (4,649) (13,613)
Net cash flows from operating activities (a) 135,460 - 135,460 66,761 60,990 127,752
Investing activities
(Acqu!sitions)/disposals of;ubsidiaries, (9,175) _ (9,175) (2,281) 70 (2,212)
associates, JVs and other investments
Purchase of tangible and intangible assets and (13,261) R (13,261) (10,565) (1,337) (11,902)
investment property
Proceeds frpm sales of PPE and intangible 2,147 ~ 2,147 1,080 288 1,367
assets and investment property
Interest received 6,201 - 6,201 2,296 2,619 4,915
Loans (granted to)/loan repayments received from
associates . . . (369) . (369)
Restricted cash 17 (59) - (59) (3,549) - (3,549)
Net cash flows from investing activities (b) (14,148) - (14,148) (13,390) 1,640 (11,750)
Einancing activities
Expenses on issue of share capital (31) - (31) - - -
Proceeds from borrowings 151,050 - 151,050 124,814 25,423 150,237
Repayment of borrowings (162,832) - (162,832) (132,384) (27,692) (160,076)
Repayments of finance leases (545) - (545) (199) - (199)
Dividends paid (55) - (55) - - -
Dividend tax paid (53) - (53) - - -
Grants received 23 567 - 567 - - -
Net cash flows from financing activities (c) (11,901) - (11,901) (7,769) (2,269) (10,038)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents for the year (a)+(b)+(c) 109,412 - 109,412 45,602 60,361 105,963
5:;“ and cash equivalents at beginning of 117,795 (20) 117,774 61,373 32,483 93,857
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 227,206 (20) 227,186 106,975 92,845 199,820
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2.2.3 Standards and interpretations effective forusequent financial periods

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and subsequent amendhents to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7(effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

IFRS 9 replaces the guidance in IAS 39 which deatls the classification and measurement of finanagsets
and financial liabilities and it also includes ampected credit losses model that replaces the reduloss
impairment model used today. IFRS 9 Hedge Accogngistablishes a more principles-based approackdgeh
accounting and addresses inconsistencies and wassaa the current model in 1AS 39. The Groupuisently

investigating the impact of IFRS 9 on its finandgtdtements. The Group cannot currently early atfeips 9 as it
has not been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”(effective for annual periods beginning on or mfte
January 2017)

IFRS 15 has been issued in May 2014. The objeofitiee standard is to provide a single, comprehensvenue
recognition model for all contracts with customersmprove comparability within industries, acrasdustries,
and across capital markets. It contains princigheg an entity will apply to determine the measugamof
revenue and timing of when it is recognised. Thdeulying principle is that an entity will recognisevenue to
depict the transfer of goods or services to custeraé an amount that the entity expects to beledtio in
exchange for those goods or services. The Grouapriently investigating the impact of IFRS 15 amfihancial
statements. The standard has not yet been endoysbd EU.

IFRIC 21 “Levies” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftérJune 2014)

This interpretation sets out the accounting foroblfigation to pay a levy imposed by government tisahot
income tax. The interpretation clarifies that thigating event that gives rise to a liability taypa levy (one of
the criteria for the recognition of a liability amding to 1AS 37) is the activity described in tledevant legislation
that triggers the payment of the levy. The intetglien could result in recognition of a liabilitgter than today,
particularly in connection with levies that argggered by circumstances on a specific date.

IAS 19R (Amendment) “Employee Benefits”(effective for annual periods beginning on or atteluly 2014)
These narrow scope amendments apply to contritaifimm employees or third parties to defined bengéins
and simplify the accounting for contributions that independent of the number of years of emplageéce, for

example, employee contributions that are calculatairding to a fixed percentage of salary.

IFRS 11 (Amendment) “Joint Arrangements” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary

2016)

This amendment requires an investor to apply theciples of business combination accounting wheatguires
an interest in a joint operation that constitutédsusiness’. The amendment has not yet been erdibssthe EU.

IAS 16 and IAS 38 (Amendments) “Clarification of Aceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)

This amendment clarifies that the use of revenisethanethods to calculate the depreciation of aet assot
appropriate and it also clarifies that revenueesegally presumed to be an inappropriate basisnEasuring the
consumption of the economic benefits embodied innsangible asset. These amendments have not et be
endorsed by the EU.

IAS 16 and IAS 41 (Amendments) “Agriculture: Bearerplants”_(effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016)

These amendments change the financial reportingearer plants, such as grape vines and fruit.tiges bearer
plants should be accounted for in the same wayeHscenstructed items of property, plant and equepm
Consequently, the amendments include them withérsttope of 1AS 16, instead of IAS 41. The produmeving
on bearer plants will remain within the scope ofIAl. These amendments have not yet been endoysibeé b
EU.
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IAS 27 (Amendment) “Separate financial statements’(effective for annual periods beginning on or afte
January 2016)

This amendment allows entities to use the equitthoteto account for investments in subsidiariesitjeentures
and associates in their separate financial statesmaand clarifies the definition of separate finah&tatements.
The amendment has not yet been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (Amendments) “Sale or Contributbn of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftedanuary 2016)

These amendments address an inconsistency betheeadquirements in IFRS 10 and those in IAS 28ealidg
with the sale or contribution of assets betweenirarestor and its associate or joint venture. Thenma
consequence of the amendments is that a full gaioss is recognised when a transaction involvésiginess
(whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). Atiphgain or loss is recognised when a transadtivolves assets
that do not constitute a business, even if thesetsisre housed in a subsidiary. These amendmavesniot yet
been endorsed by the EU.

IAS 1 (Amendments) “Disclosure initiative” (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)

These amendments clarify guidance in IAS 1 on rigiigr and aggregation, the presentation of suldptide
structure of financial statements and the disclsiraccounting policies. These amendments havgeidbeen
endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 (Amendments) “Investmerentities: Applying the consolidation exception”
(effective for annual periods beginning on or aftelanuary 2016)

These amendments clarify the application of thesobdation exception for investment entities aneirth
subsidiaries. These amendments have not yet belensedl by the EU.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 201Zeffective for annual periods beginning on oraftéebruary 2015)

The amendments set out below describe the key elsangseven IFRSs following the publication of tasults of
the IASB’s 2010-12 cycle of the annual improvememtgect.

IFRS 2 “Share-based payment”

The amendment clarifies the definition of a ‘vegtoondition’ and separately defines ‘performancedition’
and ‘service condition’.

IFRS 3 “Business combinations”

The amendment clarifies that an obligation to pagtingent consideration which meets the definitidra
financial instrument is classified as a financiabllity or as equity, on the basis of the defmiis in IAS 32
“Financial instruments: Presentation”. It also iies that all non-equity contingent consideratidimth
financial and non-financial, is measured at falueahrough profit or loss.

IFRS 8 “Operating segments”

The amendment requires disclosure of the judgemerade by management in aggregating operating
segments.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The amendment clarifies that the standard doesemobve the ability to measure short-term receivahbled
payables at invoice amounts in cases where thecingbaot discounting is immaterial.

IAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment” and IAS 38tangible assets”

Both standards are amended to clarify how the grasg/ing amount and the accumulated depreciatien a
treated where an entity uses the revaluation model.
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IAS 24 “Related party disclosures”

The standard is amended to include, as a relatagl, @ entity that provides key management persbnn
services to the reporting entity or to the pardnhe reporting entity.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2013 effective for annual periods beginning on or mtteJanuary 2015)

The amendments set out below describe the key ekanghree IFRSs following the publication of teeults of
the IASB’s 2011-13 cycle of the annual improvemenntgect.

IFRS 3 “Business combinations”

This amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 does not applythe accounting for the formation of any joint
arrangement under IFRS 11 in the financial statésnefithe joint arrangement itself.

IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The amendment clarifies that the portfolio exceptin IFRS 13 applies to all contracts (includingnno
financial contracts) within the scope of IAS 39/IFR.

IAS 40 “Investment property”

The standard is amended to clarify that IAS 40 &R 3 are not mutually exclusive.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014effective for annual periods beginning on or mtteJanuary 2016)

The amendments set out below describe the key elatagfour IFRSs. These amendments have not yet bee
endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and disiced operations”

The amendment clarifies that, when an asset (poda group) is reclassified from ‘held for sale*teld for
distribution’, or vice versa, this does not congéita change to a plan of sale or distribution, @mes not have
to be accounted for as such.

IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”

The amendment adds specific guidance to help mamargedetermine whether the terms of an arrangetoent
service a financial asset which has been transfazoastitute continuing involvement and clarifigstt the
additional disclosure required by the amendmentd~RS 7, ‘Disclosure — Offsetting financial assatsd
financial liabilities’ is not specifically requireidr all interim periods, unless required by IAS 34

IAS 19 “Employee benefits”

The amendment clarifies that, when determiningdiseount rate for post-employment benefit obligagioit
is the currency that the liabilities are denomidatethat is important, and not the country whéeytarise.

IAS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’

The amendment clarifies what is meant by the referén the standard to ‘information disclosed elsens in
the interim financial report’.

2.3 Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the grdwas the power to govern the financial and busipedisies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more tha half of the voting rights. The existence anfgatfof
potential voting rights that are currently exerbisaor convertible are considered when assessirgtheh the
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group controls another entity. The Group also aesesxistence of control where it does not haveerti@n 50%
of the voting power but is able to govern the ficiahand business policies by virtue of de-factotoa. De-facto
control may arise in circumstances where the sizeeogroup’s voting rights relative to the sizelatispersion of
holdings of other shareholders give the group thegr to govern the financial and operating policies

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the datendich control is transferred to the Group and ramdonger
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of accountmgaccount for the acquisition of subsidiaries.eTh
consideration transferred for the acquisition stisidiary is the fair values of the assets trarede the liabilities
incurred and the equity interests issued by theigrat the date of transaction. The consideratiansfierred
includes the fair value of any asset or liabilidgulting from a contingent consideration arrangemeentifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingentliteds assumed in a business combination are nmedsnaitially
at their fair value at the acquisition date. Th@@r recognises any non-controlling interest atrtve-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognisedumts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Aljuasition
expenses are recognized in the income statemémtwased.

If the business combination is achieved in statfesacquisition date carrying value of the acqtgrpreviously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-meastwddir value at the acquisition date; any gainsoeses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profdss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred tyy Group is recognised at fair value at the actpisidate.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the cosingonsideration that is deemed to be an asd&bility is
recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either in iprof loss or as a change to other comprehensivenie.
Contingent consideration that is classified astggainot re-measured, and its subsequent settleimaacounted
for within equity.

If the business combination is achieved in statfesexcess of (a) the consideration transferredh@amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree andife acquisition-date fair value of any previogsigy interest in
the acquiree over the fair value of the identifialblet assets acquired is recorded as goodwilhdftotal of
consideration transferred, non-controlling intenestognised and previously held interest measwsddss than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidaguired, the difference is recognised directlythia income
statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealggEds on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminatatbss cost cannot be recovered. Accounting polices
subsidiaries have been changed where necessanguioeeconsistency with the policies adopted byGhsup. In

the parent Company’s Statement of Financial Pagisabsidiaries are valued at cost less impairment.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiavéhout loss of control

Any transactions with non-controlling interest hayino effect on the control exercised by the Grouer the
subsidiary are measured and recorded as equityaitdans, i.e. they are treated in the same walyaadollowed
for transactions with the owners of the Group. Tifeerence between the consideration paid and éfevant
share acquired in the carrying value of the subsys equity is deducted from equity. Gain or I@sea disposals
to non-controlling interest are also recorded inigg

(c) Sale/loss of control over subsidiary

When the group ceases to have control or significdluence on a subsidiary, any retained inteireshe entity is
remeasured to its fair value, with the change imyo@g amount recognized in profit or loss. For the&pose of
subsequent accounting for the retained intereist,abset is classified as an associate or finaasisét with the
acquisition cost equalling to the above fair valltre.addition, any amounts previously recognizedother

comprehensive income will be accounted for as énciise of sale of a subsidiary, and therefore raacbounted
for in profit or loss.

(d) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the group gignificant influence but not control, generallycompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the vaiigigts. Investments in associates are accountedsiog

the equity method of accounting. Under the equigthud, the investment is initially recognized astc@and the
carrying amount is increased or decreased to rém®dhe investor's share of the profit or loss led investee
after the date of acquisition. The Group’s invesitmia associates includes goodwill (net of any clative

impairments losses) identified in acquisition.
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In case of sale of a holding in an associate orchwvithe Group continues, however, to exercise Saanif
influence, only a proportionate share of the amsureviously recognized directly in other compredies
income will be reclassified to profit or loss.

Following the acquisition, the group’s share of tpsquisition profit or loss is recognized in thecome
statement, and its share of post-acquisition mowsnan other comprehensive income is recognizedtiver
comprehensive income. The cumulative changes affectcarrying amount of the investments in assesiat
When the Group’s share in the losses of an assotaequal or greater than the carrying amounthef t
investment, the Group does not recognize any fultheses, unless it has assumed further obligattonmpade
payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whdthene is any objective evidence that investments i
associates are impaired. If this is the case, thaui®s calculates the amount of impairment as théemihce
between therecoverable amount of the associateitanzhrrying value and recognises theamount adjatzen
"share of profit/(loss) of associates" in the ineostatement.

Unrealized profits from transactions between theuprand its associates are eliminated accorditiget@roup’s
interest held in the associates. Unrealized losseseliminated, unless the transaction provideslezwe of
impairment of the transferred asset. The accourgoigies of associates have been adjusted in dodensure
consistency to the ones adopted by the Group.dp#nent company’s Statement of Financial Posiisapciates
are valued at cost less impairment.

(e) Joint arrangements

The Group and the Company account for joint arrameggs according to the method presented in not2.2.2

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eafcthe Group’s entities are measured using thecousr of the
primary economic environment in which the entityemgtes (‘the functional currency’). The consolatht
financial statements are presented in Euros, wkitie Company’s functional and presentation cuyen

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated mdunctional currency using the exchange rategaineg at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gaiddasses resulting from the settlement of suchstations
during the fiscal year and from the translatiommfetary items into foreign exchange at currergsrajpplicable
on the balance sheet date are recorded in profitl@ss, except where they are transferred directiDther
Comprehensive income due to being related to dashifedges and net investment hedges.

Any changes in the fair value of financial secedtdenominated in foreign currency classified aslaivie for
sale are analyzed into translation differencesltiagufrom changes in the amortized cost of theusgcand other
changes in the carrying amount of the securityn3legion differences related to changes in amattizest are
recognized in profit or loss, and other changesaimying amount are recognized in other comprekeriscome.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, sashequities held at fair value through profit osd, are
reported as part of the fair value gain or losselm currency translation differences in non-ficiahassets and
liabilities, such as shares classified as availfdisale, are included in other comprehensivernmeo
(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the grargities (none of which has the currency of a hipfiationary
economy) that have a functional currency differénetm the presentation currency are translated th
presentation currency as follows:

i) assets and liabilities are translated using thesriat effect at the balance sheet date,

i) income and expenses are translated using the &veates of the period (unless this average rate is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulatifecebdf the rates prevailing on the transaction
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dates, in which case income and expenses aredtedslt the rate on the dates of the transactions)
and

iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognineather comprehensive income and are transferred
to the income statement upon disposal of these ani@gp.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising ftbentranslation of the net investment in foreigmitees, and

of borrowings and other currency instruments degtiggh as hedges of such investments, are takenhtr ot
comprehensive income. Upon disposal of a foreigmpamy in part or in whole, accumulated exchange
differences are transferred to the income statewfeiie period as profit or loss resulting from tade.

Gains and changes to fair value from the acqursitibforeign companies are considered as assetfiadnilities
of the foreign company and are measured at themcyrrate applicable on the balance sheet dateesliiting
exchange differences are recognised in other cdmpsive income.

25 Investment property

Any property held for long-term leasing or capigains or both and is not used by the Group’s coiegais
classified as investment property. Investmentsraperty consist of land and buildings as well asets under
construction which are built or developed to bedus® investment property in the future.

Investment property is initially recognized at ¢astluding all direct acquisition and borrowingst®. Borrowing
costs related to the acquisition or constructiomeéstment property form part of the investmemtparty cost for
as long as the acquisition or construction takeseland until the asset’'s construction is completedeased.
After the initial recognition investment property measured at amortized cost less impairment. fimesg
property’s depreciation is based on its useful iifich is estimated at 40 years, except for pretbaton-
renovated buildings which are depreciated in 20s/ea

Subsequent costs are added to an investment pydgrt's carrying amount only when it is probatiatt future
economic benefits associated with the item wilwfleo the Group and the cost of the item can be oreds
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance arergéd to profit or loss during the financial yeamwhich they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupiethbyGroup, from that point on it is classifiedram-current
tangible asset. Also, when there is a change inue of investment properties which is verified mpgbe
commencement of their exploitation with the intentto sell, then they are classified as inventory.

2.6 Leases

€)) Group Company as lessee

Leases in which the risks and rewards of ownerséipain with the lessor are classified as operatages.
Operating lease expense is recognized in the incdatement proportionally during the lease term iactldes
any restoration cost of the property if such clagsacluded in the leasing contract.

Leases of fixed assets whereby all the risks amdnads of ownership are maintained by the Groupckassified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalithd aception of the leases at the lower of die falue of the
leased property and the present value of the mimifaase payments. Each lease payment is allocatedeén
the liability and finance charges so as to ach@&weenstant rate on the finance balance outstand@ihmgrespective
lease liabilities, net of finance charges, areudel in borrowings. The part of the finance chamgjating to
finance leases is recognized in the income statemer the term of lease. The property, plant agqdipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated beeshtorter of their useful life and the lease term.

(b) Group Company as lessor

The Group leases assets only through operatingede@Bperating lease income is recognized in theniec
statement of each period proportionally over thmtef the lease.

(25) / (81)



‘ AKTOR SA
AKTS2P Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Fixed assets are reported in the financial statésretracquisition cost less accumulated depreciatia possible
impairment. The acquisition cost includes all tRpenses directly attributable to the acquisitionhef assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s ngraynount or recognised as a separate asset, @pagfe, only
when it is probable that future economic benefitsogiated with the item will flow to the Group ath@ cost of
the items can be measured reliably. The repaimaaidtenance cost is recorded in the profit and\dssn such is
realized.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on othertassecalculated using the straight-line methodltocate their
cost or revalued amounts to their residual valwes their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 20-40 years

- Mechanical equipment 5-10 years
- Transportation equipment 5-9 vyears
- Other equipment 5-10 years

The management reassessed the assets' usefuhfidgeshanged, in 2014, its estimations for somegoaies of
assets. The impact of the above change is instgmififor the Group.

PPE under construction are included in non-curt@mgible assets and they begin to be depreciated ey are
completed and ready for use, as intended by thealylement.

When the carrying values of tangible assets exdbeit recoverable value, the difference (impairrhant
recognized in the income statement as expense Zrfdte

Upon the sale of PPE, any difference between tbhegeds and the depreciable amount is recordedrasmgiss
in the income statement.

Financial expenses directly attributable to thestction of assets are being capitalized for #god needed up
to the completion of the construction. All othardncial expenses are recognized in the incomenstaite

2.8 Intangible assets
(@) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (a) the condider&ransferred, (b) the amount of any non-cotitrglinterest
in the acquiree and (c) the acquisition-date faiug of any previous equity interest in the acquioger the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired, jithet the business combination is achieved inestaGoodwill
arising from acquisitions of subsidiaries is redagd in intangible assets. Goodwill is not deprblgaand is
tested for impairment annually or more frequentiytiere are indications of potential impairment aisd
recognized at cost, less any impairment lossesd®itildosses cannot be reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing goodwill lis@ated to cash generating units. Allocation isdm#o those
units or cash generating unit groups which are egueto benefit from the business combinations Wwhic
generated goodwill, and is monitored at the opegasegment level.

Profit and losses from the disposal of an enteggrislude the book value of the goodwill of theegptise sold.

Negative goodwill is written off in profit and loss
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(b) Software

Software licenses are measured at amortized castbrtfzation is calculated with the straight line thued over
the useful lives which vary from 1 to 3 years.

(c) Licenses

Licenses are measured at amortized cost. Amodizalf licenses begins from the initial operatiotedaf solar
parks and is calculated with the straight-line rodtbver their useful life, which is 20 years. Licen are subject
to impairment testing when certain events or charigehe circumstances suggest that their carryalge may
not be recoverable (refer to note 2.9).

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life, such as geitidare not amortized and are subject to impaintrtesting on
an annual basis, or when certain events or chalegd® circumstances suggest that their carryiigevenay not
be recoverable. Assets that are amortized are culojémpairment testing when indications existt ttieir book
value is not recoverable. Impairment loss is recghfor the amount by which the fixed asset'syeagr value
exceeds its recoverable value. The recoverableevialihe higher between the fair value, reducedhieycost
required for the disposal, and the value in useréot value of cash flows anticipated to be gemeréiased on the
management’s estimates of future financial and atpeg conditions). For the calculation of impairméosses,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for whietetare separately identifiable cash generatiitg.ulny non-
financial assets, other than goodwill, which hagerbimpaired in prior financial years, are reass$sr possible
impairment reversal on each balance sheet date.

2.10 Financial assets
2.10.1Classification

The financial instruments of the Group have beassified in the following categories based on thgppse for
which each investment was undertaken. Manageméatrdimes the classification at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through prafitloss

This category includes financial assets held faditrg. Derivatives are also categorised as heldréoling unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets that aes béhd for trading or are expected to be sold iwift2 months
from the balance sheet date are classified asrduassets.

(b) Loans and receivables

These include non-derivative financial assets fikéd or predefined payments which are not tradedn active
market. They are included in current assets, exftepthose with maturities greater than 12 montfierahe

balance sheet date. These are classified as nogntassets. Loans and receivables are includéeitrade and
other receivables account in the Statement of [EiahRosition.

(c) Available for sale financial assets

These include non-derivative financial assets déhateither designated as such or cannot be inclindaay of the
previous categories. They are included in nonenirassets unless management intends to dispdsenofwithin
12 months from the balance sheet date.

2.10.2 Recognition and Measurement

The purchases and sales of financial assets amued for on the trade-date, which is the datevbith the

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Imaysts are initially recognized at their fair valpéys expenses
directly attributed to the transaction, excepttfuvse expenses directly attributed to financiaktssat fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets valuedaatvalue through profit or loss are initially kgnized at fair
value, and transaction expenses are recognizéskimtome statement in the period in which theyewecurred.

Investments are eliminated when the right on chsfasf from the investments ends or is transferratitha Group

has transferred in effect all risks and rewarddliedpby the ownership.
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Subsequently, financial assets held for sale ar@sared at fair value and gains or losses from csuny fair
value are recorded in other comprehensive incontietbnse assets are sold or classified as impalogsdn sale
or when assets are impaired, the gains or lossedransferred to the income statement. Impairmesses
recognized in the income statement may not be sedethrough profit and loss.

Loans and receivables, as well as financial adsadts to maturity are recognized initially at faialue and are
measured subsequently at amortized cost basea @iféttive interest rate method.

The realized and unrealized profit or loss arighogn changes in fair value of financial assets,olihdare valued at
fair value through profit and loss, are recognizethe income statement of the period in which timeyr.

The fair values of financial assets that are traideactive markets are defined by their market ggid=or non-
traded assets, fair values are defined using valuaiechniques such as analysis of recent tramsegti
comparable items that are traded and discountddflmass.

2.10.3 Offsetting of financial receivables and liabilities

Financial receivables and liabilities are offsetl ghe net amount is presented in the Statementir@nEial
Position only when the Group or Company holds #gal right to do so and intends to offset them cfear basis
between them or to retrieve the financial assetsatite the liability at the same time.

2.10.4Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datenthette is objective evidence that a financiaébes a group
of financial assets is impaired. In case of eqaéygurities classified as held for sale, a significar prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security belowdtsst is considered as an indicator that the siEsidare impaired.
If there is objective evidence of impairment, thewmulated loss in equity, which is the differethegween the
cost of acquisition and the fair value, shall kengferred to the income statement. Impairment sos$equity
instruments recognized in the income statementnatereversed through the income statement. Regersfal
impairment of securities are recognized in profitlass if the increase in the fair value of thetgsnis can be
related objectively to a certain event that toakcpl after recognition of impairment loss in profitoss.

If there is objective evidence that financial asde¢ld to maturity and presented at net book vhmee been
impaired, the amount of impairment loss is caladaas the difference between their carrying valog the
current value of estimated future cash flows (ekéepfuture losses from credit risks not yet readl), discounted
at the initial effective interest rate. Impairméogses of financial assets held to maturity aregeized in profit
or loss.

The impairment test of trade receivables is desdrib note 2.13.

2.11 Derivative financial instruments

Group Companies consider, as applicable, ententigderivative financial instrument contracts witie aim of
hedging their exposure to interest rate risk degvrom long-term loan agreements.

The Group documents at the inception of the tratimathe relationship between hedging instrumentstaedged
items, as well as its risk management objectives sirategy for undertaking various hedging trarisast This
procedure includes linking all derivatives defireslhedging instruments to specific asset and iipliiems or to
specific commitments or forecast transactions. Gheup also documents its assessment, both at hedggtion

and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatilias are used in hedging transactions are higtiéctive in

offsetting changes in fair values or cash flowsedged items.

The fair values of various derivative instrumensedi for hedging purposes are disclosed in notdib§ements
on the hedging reserve in other comprehensive iscare shown in note 24. The full fair value of adiag

derivative is classified as a non-current assdinbility when the remaining hedged item is morartti2 months,
and as a current asset or liability when the reingimaturity of the hedged item is less than 12 tmenTrading
derivatives are classified as a current asseabililly.

Cash flow hedge

Derivatives are initially recognised at cost (fa@lue) on the date a derivative contract is enténénl and are
subsequently re-measured at their fair value.
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The effective portion of changes in the fair vahfederivatives that are designhated and qualify ashcflow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive incdime.gains or losses relating to the ineffectivetipn are
recognised immediately in the income statementiwitfinance expenses (income) — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassifiedrfipor loss in the periods when the hedged itdfacés the

profit or loss of the period. The gain or loss tielg to the effective portion of interest rate swéygdging variable
rate borrowings is recognised in the income statémithin ‘Finance expenses (income) — net’. Howevehen

the forecast transaction that is hedged resulisamecognition of a non-financial asset (for exemmventory or
fixed assets), the gains and losses previouslyridefen equity are transferred from equity and udeld in the
initial measurement of the cost of the asset. Téferded amounts are ultimately recognised in cbgbods sold
in the case of inventory or in depreciation in thse of fixed assets.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, ocewa hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedgeuating,
any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity tetttime remains in equity and is recognised wienforecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in the incastetement. When a forecast transaction is no loegeected to
occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was repgoiteequity is immediately transferred to the ineogtatement
within ‘Other operating income/(expenses) (net)’.

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of acqursitinst and net realizable value. The cost is cafledlusing the
weighted average cost method. The cost of finigmtisemi-finished products includes cost of degiggterials,
direct labour cost and a proportion of the geneoat of production.

Investment property to which a construction ing@aiming at a future sale is reclassified as itorgrat carrying
value at the balance sheet date. Subsequent meesiris calculated at the lowest value betweercdisé and net
realisable value. Financial expenses are not ieclud the acquisition cost of inventories. Thenmeelizable value
is estimated based on the stock’s current selliiggpin the ordinary course of business, lesspssible selling
expenses, wherever such a case occurs.

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are recognized initially at fatue and subsequently measured at amortized sigg the
effective interest method, except if the discountcome is not material, less provision for impainteA
provision for impairment of trade receivables isablished when there is objective evidence thatGheup will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due, atiog to the original terms of receivables.

Trade receivables comprise of commercial papersates receivable from customers.

If the customer encounters serious problems, tresipitity of bankruptcy or financial reorganizati@amd the
inability of scheduled payments are consideredendd that the receivable value must be impaired. drhount
of the provision is the difference between the ireddes' carrying amount and the present valudefestimated
future cash flows discounted at the effective gérate, and is charged as an expense in the emstatement.

2.14 Restricted cash

Restricted cash is cash not available for use. @Gd$ cannot be used by the Group until a spguéfitod of time
passes or a specific event takes place in thedfulnrcases whereby restricted cash is expected tsed within a
year from the balance sheet date, it is classd®&durrent asset. If, however, the restricted tagbt expected to
be used within a year from the balance sheet &g, it is classified as non-current asset.
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2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, sight de@osl short-term investments of up to 3 month#h wigh
liquidity and low risk.

2.16  Share capital

The share capital consists of the ordinary shafetheo Company. Whenever any Group company purchase
shares of the Company (Treasury shares), the amasidn paid is deducted from equity attributaldethe
Group’s equity holders until the shares are caadedr disposed of. The profit or loss from the sdlewn shares

is recognized directly to equity.

Costs directly attributable to the issue of newirtaidy shares are shown in equity as a deductidnpf@x, from
the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair valuet of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings saresequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective aderate method. Any difference between the pracéeet of
transaction costs) and the redemption value isgrized in the income statement over the periodhef t
borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Any borrowing expenses paid upon signing of newditragreements are recognized as borrowing expenses
provided that part or all of the new credit linenighdrawn. In this case, the fee is deferred uh#& draw-down
occurs. To the extent that some or all of the ityoilill not be drawn down, the fee is classifiesl@epayment for
liquidity services and is recognised in the incastaement over the period of the facility to whicrelates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilitieslass the Group has the right to defer the settléroérthe
obligation for at least 12 months from the balasiceet date.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current and dedetax. Tax is recognized in the income statemengss it is
relevant to amounts recognized in other comprekienisicome or directly in equity. In this case, iaxalso
recognized in other comprehensive income or eqregpectively.

Income tax on profit is calculated in accordancthwie tax legislation effective as of the balasbeet date in
the countries where the Group operates, and isgréoed as expense in the period during which pnofis
generated. Management regularly evaluates the eds@® the applicable tax legislation requiresrptetation.
Where necessary, estimates are made for the amexpested to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is determined using the ligbithethod on temporary differences arising betwinentax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrgimpunts, as presented in the financial statem&hts.deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises framtial recognition of an asset or liability in alfrsaction, other
than a business combination, that at the time etridnsaction affects neither the accounting neitdliable gains
or losses. Deferred income tax is calculated usliegtax rates and tax legislation effective onhiatance sheet
date and expected to be effective when the defaeedssets will be realized or deferred tax liibgd will be
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extetthiere could be future taxable profit in orderuse the
temporary difference that gives rise to the defbtex assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset ahthe offsetting of tax assets and liabilitiesprmitted by law

and provided that deferred tax assets and liadsliire determined by the same tax authority tdakgayer or
different taxpayers and there is the intentionricped to settlement through offset.
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2.19 Employee benefits
(&) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to both defined benefit aefinéd contribution plans. The Group operatesoesripost-
employment schemes. Payments are defined by tHiealplp local legislation and the fund's regulasion

Defined benefit plan is a pension plan which define amount of pension benefit that an employekeragkeive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or moreifasuch as age, years of service and compensation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan unddich the Group pays fixed contributions into pa®ate
entity. The group has no legal or constructive gdilons to pay further contributions if the fundedanot hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the beneditging to employee service in the current andrgreriods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays gbuations to publicly administered pension insumptans on
a mandatory basis. The group has no further paymleligations once the contributions have been paie
contributions are recognised as employee bengjitrese when they are due. Prepaid contributionseamgnised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refundestugtion in the future payments is available.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet speet of defined benefit pension plans is the ptegglue of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the reipgriperiod less the fair value of plan assets. Iidi#lity of the
defined benefit plan is calculated annually by adependent actuary with the use of the projected anedit
method. The present value of the defined benefigation is determined by discounting the estimdtedre cash
outflows using interest rates of high-quality cagte bonds that are denominated in the currenayhich the
benefits will be paid, and that have terms to migt@approximating to the terms of the related pensibligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experieadjestments and changes in actuarial assumptiensharged
or credited to other comprehensive income in theogden which they arise.

Past-service costs are recognised immediatelyeimitome statement.
(b) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employmetgrisinated before the normal retirement date, loerwan
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchamgthése benefits. The group recognises termintamnefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when gineup can no longer withdraw the offer of thosadiis; and (b)
when the entity recognises costs for a restruajutiat is within the scope of IAS 37 and involvies payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer madencourage voluntary redundancy, the terminatiemefits are
measured based on the number of employees expectaccept the offer. Benefits falling due more tHzh
months after the end of the reporting period asealinted to their present value.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration and legfaims are recognised when: there is a presergatiun (legal
or constructive) as a result of past events, whes highly probable that an outflow of resourcesbedying
economic benefits will be required to settle thégattion and a reliable estimate can be made oatheunt of the
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is matkrf@ovisions are measured by discounting the eegefuture
cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects curreatket assessments for the time value of moneytlamdisks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is dsehe increase of the provision due to the passédane is
recognized as financial expense. Provisions aliewed at each reporting date, and if it is no lonqebable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefilishe required to settle the obligation, theg aeversed.
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2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the ammuaeived or receivable for sale of goods and sesyinet of
rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue if it can be reliabBasured and it is probable that future economietits
associated with the transaction will flow to theoGp.

Income is mainly generated from construction prisieoperating leases and production and trade afrguag
products.

The revenue generated from sales of products acgyné&zed when the Group has transferred the sigmifirisks
and rewards of their ownership to the buyer.

The revenue and profit from construction contraects recognised according to IAS 11 as describédbie 2.22
below.

Revenue from operating leases is recognized innt@me statement using the straight line methodnduthe
lease period. When the Group provides incentiee#s clients, the cost of these incentives is geed
throughout the lease period with the straight limethod, as a deduction from the income derivingiftbe lease.

Income from the provision of services and real testaanagement are recorded in the period duringiwtiie
services are rendered, based on the stage ofdkissipin of service in relation to total serviced®provided.

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basigyihe effective interest rate method. In casenpiirment of
borrowings and receivables, interest income is geized using the rate which discounts future flofes
impairment purposes.

In the case whereby the Group acts as a repreisentdtis the commission and not the gross revethag is
accounted for as revenue.

Dividends are accounted for as income when the t@teceive payment is established.

2.22 Construction contracts

A construction contract is a contract signed upc#igally for the construction of an asset or a tdmation of
assets that are closely interrelated or interdegr@noh terms of their design, technology and fworctor their
ultimate purpose or use.

When the outcome of a construction contract carb®treliably estimated, only the expenses realized a
expected to be collected are recognized as incoone the contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract carrddi@ably estimated, the income and expenses will be
recognized during the term of the contract as ireamd expenses, respectively.

When the outcome of a construction contract careligbly estimated , the revenue and expenseseofahtract

are recognized during the contract term as a revemad expense respectively. The Group uses the-efag
completion method to estimate the appropriate amotimevenue and expense to be recognized for @icer
period. The stage of completion is calculated basethe expenses which have been incurred up tbdlace

sheet date compared to the total estimated expémsesch contract. If it is probable that theatatost of the

contract will exceed total income, then the estaddoss is directly recognized in profit and lossaa expense.

In order to determine the cost realized by the @nthe period, any expenses relating to futuregaskluded in
the contract are exempted and presented as wqntogress. The total incurred cost and recognizetitp loss
for each contract is compared with cumulative igesitill the end of the year.

Whereby the realized expenses plus the net prigfits (loss) recognized exceed the sequential inspite
resulting difference is presented as “Amounts doenfcustomers for construction contract” under doeount
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“Trade and other receivables”. When the cumulaiiwices exceed the incurred expenses plus thenodit
(less loss) recognized, the balance is presentad/asiount due to customers for construction casttrander the
account “Trade and other payables”.

2.23 Dividends Distribution

The distribution of dividends to equity holderstbé parent company is recognized as liability wHestribution
is approved by the General Meeting of the sharedeld

2.24 Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at fagivalue where there is a reasonable assuramatehé grant
will be received and the Group will comply with attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferredracognized in the income statement to match tvémthe
costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants regarding the purchase of fixesbta or the construction of projects are incluishedon-
current liabilities as deferred government gramig are recognized as income through profit and Us$sg the
straight line method according to the asset’s etgueaseful life.

2.25 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets helshfe and measured at the lower of carrying amaudt fair
value less costs to sell if their carrying amoustestimated to be recovered by the Group througiala
transaction rather than through their use.

2.26 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are usually obligations to make payrfor products or services acquired during thainary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payabdeclassified as current liabilities if the paymés due
within no more than one year. If not, they are sifeed as non-current liabilities. Trade payables eecognized
initially at fair value and subsequently measuredraortized cost using the effective interest raéthod.

2.27 Reclassifications and roundings

The amounts included in these financial statemleat® been rounded in thousand Euro. Any differeacesiue
to the amounts rounding.
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3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to several financial riskshsas market risks (macroeconomic conditions inGineek
market, changes in prices of property, raw matgrstich as steel and cement, foreign exchangemiskest rate
risk, etc.), credit risk and liquidity risk. Finaiatrisks are associated with the following finaaldinstruments:
trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, snadl®ther payables and borrowings. The accoumptimgiples
related to the above financial instruments aregmtes! in Note 2.

Risk management is monitored by the financial dmpant, more specifically by the central Financial
Management Department of the Group, and is detemnby directives, guidelines and rules approvedhay
Board of Directors with regard to interest ratd rizredit risk, the use of derivative and non-datiie instruments
and the short-term investment of cash.

€)) Market Risk

Market risk is related to the business and geogdecapkectors where the Group operates. Indicatjwbly Group

is exposed to the risk resulting from a changénéoconditions prevailing in the domestic and foneignstruction
sector, a change in raw material prices, a chamgjeel value of properties and leases, along watksrassociated
with the completion of projects undertaken by jomtrangements. The Group’s departments are closely
monitoring the trends in the individual marketswhich it operates and plan actions for prompt affitient
adaptation to the individual markets’ new circumses.

i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in foreign countries, mainlthe Middle East and the Balkans (Romania, Bulgaibania,
etc.). As far as the Group's activities in foreggruntries are concerned, the Group is exposed ¢igfo exchange
risk mainly resulting from the exchange rate ofdlocurrencies (e.g. AED, QAR, RON, etc.), as wslfrmam the
exchange rate of US Dollar to Euro. It should beddhat the exchange rates of certain currenaiesn{y local
currencies in countries of the Middle East) ar&duhto the US Dollar. Proceeds are made in locaitogy and in
US Dollars and despite the fact that the largestqfahe cost and expenses is paid in the sanrerey, a foreign
exchange risk still exists for the remaining amsurftoreign exchange risk, where it is consideredéeo
significant and worthy of being hedged, will be ped by the use of derivative forward contracts. SEhe
derivatives are priced at their fair values andrapegnized as an asset or a liability in the faianstatements.

As regards operations in other foreign countriésati31.12.2014 the exchange rates of local curesnbad
weakened/strengthened by 5% against the Euro, tbepG profit before tax would have been 854 throEu
higher/lower, mainly due to foreign exchange lo&smas on translation of receivables, payables eash
equivalents denominated in foreign currency. Ifélxehange rates of local currencies had weakemed¢ghened
by 5% against the Euro the available-for-sale resemvould be 2,006 th. Euro higher/lower, due toeifn
exchange losses/gains on translation of availaistedle financial assets denominated in foreignecuay.

ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's assets include significant interestribgaitems, including sight deposits and short-teloank
deposits. The Group is exposed to risk from flutitues of interest rates, arising from bank loanthvifoating
rates. The Group is exposed to floating interestsrgrevailing in the market, which affect both firancial
position and the cash flows. Borrowing cost mayeéase due to such fluctuations, resulting to lossekecrease
due to extraordinary events. It should be notedttiefluctuation in interest rates in recent ydas been caused
primarily by the increase in spreads due to th& tzcliquidity in the Greek financial market andetlestimated
risk of Greek companies, and to a lesser exteihédyluctuation of the base interest rates (e.gibBu).

As regards long-term borrowings, the Group’s Mamaget systematically and constantly monitors interate
fluctuations and assesses the need to take relpweaitions to hedge risks, when and if necessarthé context
of risk offsetting, Group companies may enter ies¢iswap contracts and other derivatives.

The majority of Group borrowings are linked to fiog rates and the largest part of borrowings isotieinated in
Euro. As a consequence, interest rate risk is piiynderived from the fluctuations of Euro interesites and
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secondly from the interest rate fluctuations ofeotburrencies in which the Group has taken bankdd®$S
Dollar, AED, Qatari riyal, etc).

The Group constantly monitors interest rate trelmgswell as the maturity and nature of subsidiafieancing
needs. Decisions on loan terms as well as theiogelé#ietween floating and fixed interest rates ayastered
separately on a case by case basis.

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis of Group Borrowngs

A reasonable and possible interest rate changedyty five basis points (increase/decrease 0.256t)dMead to
the decreaselincrease in earnings before taxdésdgrear 2014, all other things being equal, by &4 thousand
(2013: euro 325 th.). It should be noted that fleeesmentioned change in earnings before tax isutatied on the
floating rate loan balances at the reporting dat does not include the positive effect of inteiesbme from
cash deposits and cash equivalents.

At parent company level, a reasonable and posditerest rate change by twenty five basis points
(increase/decrease 0.25%) would lead to the demiraiease in earnings before taxes for the yehd 28l other
things being equal, by euro 294 thousand (2013 280 thousand). It should be noted that the afergioned
change in earnings before tax is calculated orfltdaing rate loan balances at the reporting dat @oes not
include the positive effect of interest income froash deposits and cash equivalents.

iii) Price risk

The Group is exposed to risk related to the fludmaof the fair value of its available-for-saledincial assets
which can affect the financial statements, as eglégains or losses from fair value adjustmentshelrecorded
as a reserve under equity until these assets lr@solassified as impaired. It is clarified thithe closing price
of ELDORADO GOLD at 31/12/2014 had been higher bg, 5he available-for-sale reserves would have 38n
mil. euro higher, while if it had been lower by 3Be profit/loss for the year would have been 3.B euiro lower.

(b) Credit risk

The Group has developed policies in order to enfhattransactions are conducted with customesaufficient
credit rating. Due to the conditions prevailingle market, credit limit approvals result from dcsér procedure
that involves all senior management levels. Theu@rbas been monitoring its debtors’ balances vargfally
and where receivables with credit risk are idegtifithey are assessed in accordance with establshieies and
procedures and an appropriate impairment provisiéormed.

Cash and cash equivalents, investments and firlateiaative contracts potentially involve credik as well. In
such cases, the risk may arise from counterpaitiyréato fulfill their obligations towards the Grpuln order to
manage this credit risk, the Group sets limitsht® degree of exposure for each financial institytieithin the
scope of the policies of the Board f Directors.

(c) Liquidity risk

Given the current financial crisis of the Greek jmubector and the Greek financial institutions tiguidity risk

is greater and the cash flow management is coreidenitical. In order to deal with liquidity riskhe Group has
been budgeting and monitoring on a regular basisash flows, seeks to ensure availability of castiuding the
possibilities of intercompany loans as well as @ausank credit limits in order to meet its needg.(8nancing

needs, letters of guarantee, etc.).

Group liquidity is monitored on a regular basis Management. The following table presents an armlg§i
Group and Company debt maturities as of 31 Dece2bt and 2013 respectively:
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All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP
31 December 2014
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Within 1 Fromlto2 From2to5 Over5
year years years years Total
Trade and other payables 482,203 1 N N 482,214
Finance lease liabilities 509 165 302 - 975
Derivative financial instruments 225 - - - 225
Borrowings 129,429 50,695 7,045 1,278 188,447
31 December 2013*
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Within 1 From1lto2 From2to5 Over5
year years years years Total
Trade and other payables 425,288 1,863 6,000 - 433,151
Finance lease liabilities 587 509 467 ; 1,563
Borrowings 87,649 9,562 49,185 1,600 147,996
COMPANY
31 December 2014
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
From 1 to 2 From2to 5
Within 1 year years years Total
Trade and other payables 439,762 8 - 439,769
Finance lease liabilities 171 165 302 638
Derivative financial instruments 225 - - 225
Borrowings 98,852 48,088 - 146,940
31 December 2013*
MATURITY OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
From1to 2 From2to 5
Within 1 year years years Total
Trade and other payables 357,447 1,843 - 359,290
Finance lease liabilities 219 171 467 857
Borrowings 71,158 3,337 47,885 122,381

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

The above amounts are presented in the contractualdiscounted cash flows and therefore will mancile to

those amounts disclosed in the financial statemantter Trade and other payables, Liabilities fraasing
activities and Borrowings.

Trade and Other payables breakdown is exclusiv&definces from customers, Amounts due to custonmrs f
construction contracts, and Social security anéraifixes.

d) Other risks

In previous years, the Greek State imposed extiganyl tax contributions that had a significant effen the
results of the Group. Given the current financiahdition of the Greek State, additional tax measunay be
implemented, which could have a negative effedherfinancial position of the Group.

(36) / (81)



AKTOR SA
Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

‘ AKTS2P

3.2 Capital management

Capital management aims to safeguard the groujlisyab continue as a going concern and achiewe@noup’s
development plan combined with its credit rating.

In evaluating Group’s credit rating, the Group’s debt must be evaluated (i.e. total long-term ahdrt-term
liabilities towards banks minus cash and cash edgmnis).

The Group’s net debt as of 31.12.2014 and 31.13.2)&nalysed in the following table:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Short-term bank borrowings 120,086 83,049
Long-term bank borrowings 55,156 53,958
Total borrowings 175,242 137,007
Less: Cash and cash equivaléhts 196,204 246,376
Net Debt/Cash (20,962) (109,370)
Total Group Equity 375,277 350,051

Total capital 354,315 240,681
Gearing ratio - -

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

Note:

(1) Total Cash and cash equivalents of FY2014 ammgito euro 181,020 th., (2013 euro 227,186 tim¢)ude Restricted cash of euro 15,185
th., (2013 euro 19,190 th.).

The capital gearing ratio is not applicable for @Gup at 31.12.2014 and 31.12.2013. This ratitalsulated as
net debt divided by total capital (i.e. total egutus net debt).

The Company’s net debt as of 31.12.2014 and 31013.15 presented in the following table:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Short-term bank borrowings 90,935 66,229
Long-term bank borrowings 45,698 45,951
Total borrowings 136,633 112,181
Less: Cash and cash equivalefts 155,318 215,978
Net Debt/Cash (18,685) (103,798)
Total Company Equity 470,097 465,309

Total capital 451,413 361,511
Gearing ratio - -

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

Note:

(1) Cash and cash equivalents of 2014 amountinguto 140,549 th. (2013: euro 199,820 th.*) includstricted cash amounting to
eurol4,769 th. (2013: euro 16,158 th.).

(37) / (81)



‘ AKTOR SA
AKTS2P Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

The capital gearing ratio is not applicable for @@mpany at 31.12.2014 and 31.12.2013. This rat@alculated
as net debt divided by total capital (i.e. totaliggplus net debt).

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial assets measured at fair value as of dtenbe sheet date are classified under the folipwemels, in
accordance with the method used for determininig fhi value:

- Level 1: Financial instruments traded in activarkets the fair value of which is estimated based o
(unadjusted) quoted market prices of similar insieats.

- Level 2: Financial instruments the fair valuevdiich is determined by factors related to marketdaither
directly (prices) or indirectly (prices derivatiyes

- Level 3: Financial instruments the fair valuewdfich is not determined by market observations,isuhainly
based on internal estimates.

The following table presents the carrying valuesh® Group’s and Company's financial assets arilitias
measured at amortised cost compared to their &hireg:

GROUP

All Amounts in Euro Thousands Carrying value Fair value
31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13*

Financial liabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings 175,242 137,007 175,242 137,307

COMPANY

All Amounts in Euro Thousands Carrying value Fair value
31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13*

Financial liabilities

Long-term and short-term borrowings 136,633 112,181 136,633 112,181

The fair value of the Group's and the Company'sdwings is estimated based on the discounted futash
flows.

In the following table are presented the Groupfgficial assets and liabilities at fair value ag8bfDecember
2014 and 31 December 2013. The disclosures regpmtin-current assets held for sale measured atdhie are
presented in note 18.

All amounts in Euro thousands. 31 December 2014
GROUP
CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets 77,409 27 78,43
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31 December 2013
GROUP
CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 LEVEL 3 TOTAL

Financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets 63,298 27 63,32

The following table presents the changes to Leviai@éhcial assets for the financial years ende@biecember
2014 and 31 December 2013:

All Amounts in Euro Thousands 31 December 2014 31 December 2013
GROUP GROUP
LEVEL 3 LEVEL 3
Available-for- Available-for-
sale financial sale financial
assets TOTAL assets TOTAL
At beginning of year 27 27 27 27

Additions for the year

At end of year 27 27 27 27

The fair value of financial assets traded on activarkets (e.g. derivatives, stocks, bonds, mutuadd), is
determined based on the prices publicly availablbe@balance sheet date. An “active” market exigien there
are readily available and regularly reviewed pristsch are published by the stock market, monekérosector,
rating organization or supervising organizatione3d financial tools are included in level 1. Tlegdl includes
mainly the investment in a Group operating in tleddgmining sector, which is listed on the Torontmck
Exchange and has been classified as a financiel agailable for sale.

Where the valuation techniques are not based oilablea market information, the financial instrumerdre
included in level 3.

The techniques used by the Group for financialtasseasurement include:
* Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for sinmilsiruments.
* The fair value of interest rate swaps, whichakalated as the present value of the estimatedddash flows.

The following table presents the Company's findressets and liabilities at fair value as of 31 &aber 2014
and 31 December 2013:

All amounts in Euro thousands. 31 December 2014
COMPANY
CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 TOTAL

Financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets 67 67
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31 December 2013

COMPANY
CLASSIFICATION
LEVEL 1 TOTAL
Financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets 156 156

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements madeybmanagement

Estimates and judgements made by management atiawmrsly reviewed and are based on historic dath a
expectations for future events which are consideeadonable under the current circumstances.

4.1 Significant accounting estimates and assumptions

Annual financial statements along with the accorgpannotes and reports may involve certain judgesand
calculations that refer to future events regardamgrations, developments and financial performamicéhe
Company and the Group. Despite the fact that seshraptions and calculations are based on the lbasthye
knowledge of the Company’s and the Group’s manageémith regard to current conditions and actioms t
actual results may eventually differ from calcidas and assumptions taken into consideration impteparation
of the Group’s and the Company’s annual finandeesnents.

Significant accounting estimates and assumptiors thvolve important risk of causing future matéria
adjustments to the assets’ and liabilities’ camgymalues:

(a) Estimates regarding the accounting treatmédrtamstruction projects according to IAS 11 “Consttion
Contracts”

(i) Recognition of revenue from construction contrdeésed on the percentage of completion of the
project.

For the estimation of the percentage of completibthe construction projects in progress according
which the Group recognises income from constructimmtracts, the Management estimates the
expected expenses yet to be made until the coroplefithe projects.

(i)  Requests for claims for additional work performegydnd the contractual agreement.

The Group’s Management estimates the amount toebeived for additional work and recognizes
revenue according to the percentage of completisnpong as it considers that the collection of the
amount is probable.

(b) Provisions

(i) Income tax

Estimates are required in determining the provis@mrincome taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determioatis uncertain. Where the final tax outcome oféhe
matters is different from the amounts that werdiatly recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the gkmiowhich such determination is made.

(c) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments not listedan active market is determined using valuation
methods which require using assumptions and judtgng@he Group makes assumptions based mostly
on current conditions prevailing in the marketha time of preparation of financial statements.
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(d) Estimating the useful and residual life of dsse

The Group exercises judgment in order to estintetauseful and residual life of tangible and intéieyi
assets, which are recognized either upon their isitign or due to business combinations. The
estimation of the useful and residual value of ssetiis a matter of judgment based on the Group’s
accumulated experience on similar assets. The lusefuresidual value of assets are reviewed at leas
once a year, taking into consideration new datamaarket conditions prevailing at the time of review

(e) Impairment of property, plant and equipment anag:stment property

Property, plant and equipment and investment ptgee initially recognised at cost and subsequyentl
are depreciated based on their useful lives. TloeiBassesses in each reporting period whether dnere
indications that the value of PPE and investmeoperty has been impaired. The impairment test is
performed based on market data and managemeint'sgshs for the future operating and economic
conditions. For the performance of the impairmeastihg procedure the management collaborates with
independent valuers.

(f) Post-employment benefits

The present value of the pension obligations dependa number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. 83smptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions include the discount rate.

The Group determines the appropriate discountatatiee end of each year. This is the interestthate
should be used to determine the present valuetiofiaed future cash outflows expected to be require
to settle the pension obligations. In determining appropriate discount rate, the Group considers t
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds #&matdenominated in the currency in which the bhenef
will be paid and that have terms to maturity apprating the terms of the related pension obligation

Other key assumptions for pension obligations aamsed in part on current market conditions.
Additional information is disclosed in note 31.

4.2 Critical judgments of the Management in applying tre entity’s accounting policies
Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group applies the provisions of IAS 39 in ortedetermine when a financial asset availablesébe (shares)
has been impaired. For this procedure the Groupeses significant judgement, as it must assesengrothers,
the period in which the fair value of a financiasat becomes lower than its acquisition cost, db asethe
difference between these two values. In additignfaa as non-listed shares are concerned, othemw$aare also
examined which pertain to the economic environnaamt the prospects of the company in which the invest
has been made, such as industry information, datetgichnological developments as well as operatind
financing cash flows.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

GROUP
Furniture &
Land & Transportation ~ Mechanical other PPE under
All Amounts in Euro Thousands buildings equipment equipment equipment  construction Total
Cost
1-Jan-13 76,657 41,175 212,290 22,246 5605 357,973
Foreign exchange differences (275) (99) (300) (346) 3) (1,024)
Additions except for leasing 120 3,458 6,926 1,771 842 13,116
Disposals/write-offs (1,117) (1,755) (3,543) (4,771) - (11,186)
Transfer to receivables - - (227) - (984) (1,211)
Reclassifications from PPE under
construction 398 - - - (398) -
31-Dec-13 75,782 42,779 215,145 18,900 5,061 397,66
1-Jan-14 75,782 42,779 215,145 18,900 5061 357,667
Foreign exchange differences 153 112 652 654 - 1,570
Acquisition of subisidiaries - - 959 - - 959
Additions except for leasing 217 3,934 18,731 3,406 9,609 35,898
Disposals/write-offs (3,598) (1,735) (5,353) (424) - (11,110)
31-Dec-14 72,555 45,090 230,134 22,536 14,670 884,9
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-13 (10,695) (29,523) (152,844) (18,811) - (211,872)
Foreign exchange differences 91 64 202 267 - 624
Depreciation for the year (2,171) (3,218) (13,428) (2,299) - (20,117)
Disposals/write-offs 613 1,193 3,045 4,160 - 9,011
31-Dec-13 (12,162) (31,484) (163,025) (15,684) - (222,355)
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-14 (12,162) (31,484) (163,025) (15,684) - (222,355)
Foreign exchange differences (92) (58) (425) (582) - (2,156)
Depreciation for the year (1,768) (3,333) (14,063) (2,089) - (21,253)
Disposals/write-offs 1,427 1,313 4,585 357 - 7,682
31-Dec-14 (12,594) (33,563) (172,929) (17,998) - (237,083)
Net book value as of 31 December
2013 63,620 11,295 52,119 3,217 5,061 135,312
Net book value as of 31 December
2014 59,961 11,527 57,205 4,538 14,670 147,901
Leased assets included in the above items underdenlease:
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Transportation ~ Mechanical Transportation ~ Mechanical
equipment equipment Total equipment equipment Total
Cost — Capitalised Finance
leases 50 1,323 1,373 250 4,270 4,520
Accumulated depreciation (50) (670) (720) (241) (2,798) (3,039)
Net book value - 653 653 9 1,472 1,481
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COMPANY
All Amounts in Euro Thousands
Furniture

Land & Transportation ~ Mechanical & other PPE under

buildings equipment equipment  equipment  construction Total
Cost
1-Jan-13* 33,327 34,421 178,915 15,885 3,741 266,290
Foreign exchange differences (101) 77) (274) (297) 3) (652)
Additions except for leasing 115 2,845 7,205 1,579 49 11,794
Disposals/write-offs (836) (1,548) (3,358) (333) - (6,074)
Contributions - - (560) - - (560)
Reclassifications from PPE under
construction 398 - - - (398) -
31-Dec-13* 32,903 35,642 181,929 16,934 3,390 8,7
1-Jan-14 32,903 35,642 181,929 16,934 3,390 270,798
Foreign exchange differences 192 88 610 606 - 1,496
Additions except for leasing 214 3,795 17,496 3,233 8,617 33,355
Disposals/write-offs (947) (1,498) (4,587) (386) - (7,419)
31-Dec-14 32,362 38,027 195,448 20,386 12,007 298,2
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-13* (5,939) (24,962) (142,053) (13,378) - (186,332)
Foreign exchange differences 66 42 179 129 - 416
Depreciation for the year (1,116) (2,632) (10,181) (1,069) - (14,998)
Disposals/write-offs 593 1,092 2,860 301 - 4,846
31-Dec-13* (6,396) (26,459) (149,195) (14,018) - (196,068)
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-14 (6,396) (26,459) (149,195) (14,018) - (196,068)
Foreign exchange differences (93) (60) (423) (551) - (1,127)
Depreciation for the year (778) (2,872) (10,585) (2,951) - (16,186)
Disposals/write-offs 210 1,077 3,829 326 - 5,443
31-Dec-14 (7,057) (28,314) (156,375) (16,193) - (207,939)
Net book value as of 31 December
2013* 26,507 9,183 32,734 2,916 3,390 74,730
Net book value as of 31 December
2014 25,305 9,712 39,073 4,193 12,007 90,291

Leased assets included in the above items underdelease:
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Transportation ~ Mechanical Transportation ~ Mechanical

equipment equipment Total equipment equipment Total
Cost — Capitalised Finance leases 50 1,323 1,373 50 1,323 1,373
Accumulated depreciation (50) (670) (720) (41) (461) (502)
Net book value - 653 653 9 862 871

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).
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6 Intangible assets

GROUP

All Amounts in Euro Thousands

Software Goodwill Licences Other Total
Cost
1-Jan-13 2,473 5,323 5,852 40 13,688
Foreign exchange differences (23) - - - -23
Acquisition of subsidiary - - 2,478 - 2,478
Additions 111 - - - 111
Disposals/write-offs (68) - - - -68
31-Dec-13 2,493 5,323 8,330 40 16,185
1-Jan-14 2,493 5,323 8,330 40 16,185
Foreign exchange differences 66 - - - 66
Acquisition of subsidiary 21 17 - - 37
Additions 435 - - - 435
Disposals/write-offs (231) - - - (231)
31-Dec-14 2,784 5,339 8,330 40 16,493
Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-13 (2,344) - - (40) (2,383)
Foreign exchange differences 19 - - - 19
Amortization for the year (90) - (416) - (506)
Disposals/write-offs 63 - - - 63
31-Dec-13 (2,352) - (416) (40) (2,808)
1-Jan-14 (2,352) - (416) (40) (2,808)
Foreign exchange differences (47) - - - (47)
Amortization for the year (231) - (416) - (647)
Disposals/write-offs 216 - - - 216
31-Dec-14 (2,413) - (833) (40) (3,286)
Net book value as of 31 December 2013 142 5,323 7,913 (0) 13,377
Net book value as of 31 December 2014 371 5,339 7,497 (0) 13,206

The increase in Goodwill of 17 th. euro is a residiithe consolidation of GREENWOOD PANAMA Inc which
was consolidated by BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD in the sedoquarter of 2014, with the participation cost
amounting to 0.7 th. euro.
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COMPANY

All Amounts in Euro Thousands

Cost

1-Jan-13*

Foreign exchange differences
Additions

Disposals/write-offs
31-Dec-13*

1-Jan-14

Foreign exchange differences
Additions

Disposals/write-offs
31-Dec-14

Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-13*

Foreign exchange differences
Amortization for the year
Disposals/write-offs
31-Dec-13*

1-Jan-14

Foreign exchange differences
Amortization for the year
Disposals/write-offs
31-Dec-14

Net book value as of 31 December 2013
Net book value as of 31 December 2014

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

7 Investment property

GROUP

All Amounts in Euro Thousands

Cost
1-Jan-13

Transfer to non-current assets held for sale
Additions

Impairment

31-Dec-13

Software Goodwill Total
1,922 579 2,500
(13) - (13)
74 - 74
(22) - (22)
1,960 579 2,539
1,960 579 2,539
50 - 50
427 - 427
(224) - (224)
2,213 579 2,792
(1,818) - (1,818)
11 - 11
(76) - (76)
17 - 17
(1,867) - (1,867)
(1,867) - (1,867)
(36) - (36)
(203) - (203)
209 - 209
(1,896) - (1,896)
94 579 672
317 579 895
GROUP COMPANY
9,240 9,240
(6,079) (6,079)
34 34
(3,194) (3,194)
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Accumulated depreciation
1-Jan-13
Depreciation for the year

Transfer to non-current assets held for sale
31-Dec-13

(1,424)
(139)

1,563

(1,424)
(139)

1,563

Net book value as of 31 December 2013

In FY2013, the building at Kavalieratou Street ind\Kifissia was transferred to non-current assels tor sale,
for which at 31.12.2013 there was a memorandumgoéeament for its sale, which was completed in the 1
quarter of FY2014. For the said building, an impeEnt loss had been recognised in the income stateofie
FY2013 within other operating income/expenses lot@roup and Company level amounting to 3,194 uho.e

In FY2014, neither the Group nor the Company owpniamestment property.

8

Group Investments

8.a The companies of the Group consolidated uraefull consolidation method are:

% PARENT
Ref. UNAUDITED
No | COMPANY COUNTRY DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL TAX YEARS
100.00% 100.00%4
1 AKTOR FM SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
AKTOR-TOMI (former PANTECHNIKI SA - D. 99.00% 1.00% 100.009 2010-201
2 KOUGIOUMTZOPOULOS SA GP) GREECE
100% 100.00%
2009-20D,
3 ELLINIKA LATOMEIA SA GREECE 2012-2014*
50.00% 50.00%
4 ELLINIKA FYTORIA SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
100.00% 100.004
20062010,
5 ELIANA MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
6 ILIOSAR SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
7 ILIOSAR ANDRAVIDAS SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
8 ILIOSAR KRANIDIOU SA GREECE -
100.00% 100.004
9 KASTOR SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
20062010,
10 | NEMO MARITIME COMPANY GREECE 2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
11 | PLO -KAT SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
20082010,
12 | TOMISA GREECE 2012-2014*
100% 100.00%
13 | AKTOR AFRICA LTD ( former AKTOR SUDAN LTD) CYPRS 2011-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
14 | AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 2009-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
15 | AKTOR CONSTRUCTION INTERNATIONAL LTD CYPRUS 2003-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
16 | AKTOR CONTRACTORS LTD CYPRUS 2009-2014
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100.00% 100.00%
17 | AKTOR D.0.0. BEOGRAD SERBIA
100.00% 100.00%
BOSNIA-
18 | AKTOR D.0.0 SARAJEVO HERZEGOVINA
AKTOR ENTERPRISES LTD (former GULF 100.00% 100.00%
19 | MILLENNIUM HOLDINGS LTD) CYPRUS 2008-2014
100.00% 100.004
20 | AKTOR KUWAIT WLL KUWAIT 2008-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
21 | AKTOR QATAR WLL QATAR 2011-2014
70.00% 70.00%
22 | AKTOR TECHNICAL CONSTRUCTION LLC WUE
100.00% 100.00%4
23 | AL AHMADIAH AKTOR LLC UAE
90.00% 90.00%
24 | BAQTOR MINING SUDAN
100.00% 100.004
25 | BIOSAR AMERICA INC USA
0.00% 100.00% 100.009
26 | BIOSAR CHILE SpA CHILE
100.00% 100.00%4
UNITED
27 | BIOSAR ENERGY (UK) LTD KINGDOM
100.00% 100.00%4
28 | BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD CYPRUS 2011-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
29 | BIOSAR PANAMA Inc PANAMA
100.00% 100.00%4
30 | BIOSAR -PV MANAGEMENT LTD CYPRUS 2014
100.00% 100.00%4
31 | BURG MACHINARY BULGARIA 2008-2014
85.00% 85.00%
32 | CAISSON SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*
100.00% 100.00%4
33 | COPRI-AKTOR ALBANIA 2014
40.00% 60.00% 100.009
34 | DUBAI FUJAIRAH FREEWAY JV WE
100.00% 100.00%4
35 | GENERAL GULF SPC BAHRAIN 2006-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
36 | INSCUT BUCURESTI SA ROMANIA 1997-2014
40.00% 60.00% 100.009
37 | JEBEL ALI SEWAGE TREATMENT PLANT JV WE
MILLENNIUM CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT & 100.00% 100.00%4
38 | TRADING UAE
100.00% 100.00%4
39 | SC AKTOROM SRL ROMANIA 2002-2014
100.00% 100.00%4
40 | SOLAR OLIVE SA GREECE 2010.2012-2014*

* Group companies that are established in Gregeesubject to mandatory audit by audit firms andeh@ceived a tax compliance certificate
for FY2011, FY2012 and FY2013. According to theewant legislation, the tax liabilities for finantigears 2012 and 2013 shall be
considered finalised after eighteen months fromdée when the ‘Tax Compliance Report’ has beemnétdxd to the Ministry of Finance.
According to circulafIOA 1236/18.10.2013 of the Ministry of Finance, FY 2Qtill be considered finalised at 30 April 2014 (H@&5).

The following subsidiaries were for the first tinmecorporated in the consolidated financial statetsief the
Group as of 31.12.2014 and were not included inctiresolidated financial statements as of 31.12.28%3hey
were established/acquired in 2014

» BIOSAR CHILE SpA based in Chile. It was acquirednir the Cypriot company BIOSAR HOLDINGS LTD
by paying 1 th. euro. The acquired company opeiattdee sector of solar photovoltaic projects.

» ILIOSAR KRANIDIOU SA, based in Greece. It was aaea from the Cypriot company ANTOS HOLDINGS
LTD against 104 th. euro. The acquired companyaipsrin the sector of solar photovoltaic projects.

Compared to the consolidated financial statemehtleoprior reporting period which ended at 31.022, the
following companies are no longer consolidated:

» SVENON INVESTMENTS LTD and VAMBA HOLDINGS LTD, ashey were absorbed by their parent
AKTOR ENTERPRISES LTD (former GULF MILLENNIUM HOLDNIGS LTD) in the third quarter of 2014

» ANTOS HOLDINGS LTD, as it was absorbed by its paIOSAR-PV PROJECT MANAGEMENT LTD in
the third quarter of 2014
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» AKTOR RUSSIA OPERATIONS LTD, as it was sold in ttlerd quarter of 2014 generating a profit for the
Group amounting to 33 th. euro

Compared to the consolidated financial statemefitthe prior reporting period ended at 31.12.2011% t
consolidation method applied to BIOSAR PANAMA Inormer GREENWOOD PANAMA Inc) changed. The
said company, as a subsidiary of GREENWOOD BIOSARC | was consolidated using the equity method.
However, from half year 2014 onwards it is consatiédl as a subsidiary, as the subsidiary BIOSAR HDIGES
LTD acquired 100% of its share capital.

8.b The companies of the Group consolidated urdeetjuity method are the following:

% PARENT
Ref. UNAUDITED
No | COMPANY COUNTRY DIRECT INDIRECT TOTAL TAX YEARS
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA GREECE 35.00% 35.00% 2010-2014
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA GREECE 40.00% 40.00% 2010-2014
3 STRACTOR CONSTRUCTION SA GREECE| 50.00% 50.00% 2010-2014
4 CHELIDONA SA GREECE 50.00% 50.00% 1998-2014
5 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD CYPRUS 50.00% 50.00% 2012-2014
6 ELLAKTOR VENTURES LTD CYPRUS 25.00% 25.00% 2011-2014
7 LEVASHOVO WASTE MANAGEMENT PROJECT LLC RUSSIA 25.00% 25.00%
8 GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC USA 50.00% 50.00%

Due to application of IFRS 11, the company STRAKTGR is consolidated using the equity method (note
2.2.2), whereas in the consolidated financial stetgs of the previous reporting period ended at32013 was
consolidated using the proportional consolidaticathad (by 50%).

» Compared to the consolidated financial statemeft81012.2013, in addition to the above company, the
company KINIGOS SA is also no longer consolidatesijn the 3 quarter of 2014 was completed its disposal
to third parties generating at Group level a gdiawo 1,067 th..

The result in the Income Statement under "Prafg4) from associates & joint ventures"” refers gsés for 2014
amounting to euro 362 th and mainly relates todess¥f GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC. The respective amount
for 2013, losses of euro 420 th., resulted maidyn the losses of GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC.

8.c The joint operations, the assets, liabilittesenues and expenses of which the Group accoomttording
to its share, are presented in detail in the falhgwable.

In this table, under the column "First time Condafion", 1 indicates the joint operations which ever
consolidated for the first time during the currpatiod as newly established, while they had nohbeeluded in
the respective period last year, i.e. 31.12.20ddi¢ator RPY).

Ref. % UNAUDITED FIRST
No | JOINT OPERATIONS COUNTRY | INTEREST | TAX YEARS | CONSOLIDATION
(1/0) | (IPPIRPY)
1 | JIV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 60.00 2010-2014 0 0
2 | JIVAKTOR SA - ALPINE MAYREDER BAU GmbH GREECE 510 2010-2014 0 0
3 | JIV AKTOR SA - TODINI CONSTRUZIONI GENERALI S.P.A GREECE 45.00 2010-2014 0 0
4 | JNVTEO SA —AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2014 0 0
5 | JV AKTOR SA - IMPREGILO SPA GREECE 99.90 2010-2014 0 0
“JIV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA- BIOTER SA” — TERNA SA- BDTER SA-
6 | AKTORSA GREECE 33.33 2010-2014 0 0
JIV AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA - J & P AVAX SA GRECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
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8 | J/VAKTOR SA-J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GRECE 65.78 2010-2014 0 0
9 | J/V AKTOR SA — MICHANIKI SA —MOCHLOS SA —ALTE SA- AEGEK GREECE 45.42 2010-2014 0 0
10 | JV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE 49.82 2010-2014 0 0
11 | JV AKTOR SA — X.I. KALOGRITSAS SA GREECE 49.50 2010-2014 0 0
12 | JV AKTOR SA - J & P AVAX SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GRECE 65.77 2010-2014 0 0
JIV ATTIKI ODOS — CONSTRUCTION OF ELEFSINA-STAVROSPATA
13 | ROAD & W.IMITOS RINGROAD GREECE 50.27 2010-2014 0 0
14 | JNV ATTIKAT SA— AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2010-2014 0 0
15 | J\V TOMI SA— AKTOR (APOSELEMI DAM) GREECE ) 2010-2014 0 0
16 | JNVTEO SA—AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2014 0 0
17 | JNV SIEMENS AG — AKTOR SA — TERNA SA GREECE 80. 2010-2014 0 0
18 | J\V AKTOR SA — PANTECHNIKI SA GREECE 70.00 2010-2014 0 0
JN AKTOR SA — SIEMENS SA - VINCI CONSTRUCTIONS GRIDS
19 PROJETS GREECE 70.00 2010-2014 0 0
20 JIV AKTOR SA -AEGEK - J & P AVAX-SELI GREECE 3 2010-2014 0 0
21 JIV TERNA SA -MOCHLOS SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 2008-2014 0 0
22 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2010-2014 0 0
23 JIV AKTOR SA — TERNA SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE nmn 2010-2014 0 0
24 JIV J&P-AVAX —TERNA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 33.33 2010-2014 0 0
25 JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
26 JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
27 JIV AKTOR SA -LOBBE TZILALIS EUROKAT GREECE 3343 2010-2014 0 0
28 JIV AKTOR -TOMI- ATOMO GREECE 51.00 2010-2014 0 0
29 JIV AKTOR SA -JP AVAX SA-PANTECHNIKI SA-ATTIKATSA GREECE 59.27 2010-2014 0 0
30 JIVTEO SA —-AKTOR SA GREECE 49.00 2010-2014 0 0
31 JIV AKTOR SA -TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
32 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2007-2014 0 0
33 JIV KASTOR — AKTOR MESOGEIOS GREECE 53.35 2010-2014 0 0
34 JIV (CARS) LARISAS (EXECUTOR) GREECE 81.70 2010-2014 0 0
JN AKTOR SA -AEGEK-EKTER-TERNA(CONSTR. OF OA HANGR)
35 EXECUTOR GREECE 52.00 2010-2014 0 0
36 J/IV ANAPLASI ANO LIOSION (AKTOR — TOMI) EXECUTOR GREECE 100.00 2010-2014 0 0
JN TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARON MBIC
37 HALL PHASE B- CONSTR.) PHASE B E/M) GREECE 30.00 1262014
JIV TERNA-AKTOR-J&P-AVAX (COMPLETION OF MEGARON MISIC
38 | HALL PHASE B- CONSTR.) PHASE B CONSTR.) GREECE w0 | 20102014 0 0
39 | J/VAKTOR SA— ALTE SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
JIV ATHENA SA — THEMELIODOMI SA — AKTOR SA- KONSTAITINIDIS
40 | SA—TECHNERG SA.- TSAMPRAS SA GREECE 25.00 2010-2014 0 0
41 | IV AKTOR SA - ALTE SA -EMPEDOS SA GREECE 66.67 2010-2014 0 0
42 | 3V AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA — EMPEDOS SA GREECE oa. 2010-2014 0 0
43 | IV GEFYRA GREECE 20.32 2008-2014 0 0
44 | IV AEGEK — BIOTER SA — AKTOR SA — EKTER SA GREE 40.00 2009-2014 0 0
45 | 3V AKTOR SA —ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA GREECE 1700 2010-2014 0 0
46 | IV AKTOR SA - J&P — AVAX SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
47 | 3V AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA GREEE 33.33 2010-2014 0 0
JN AKTOR SA -TOMI-ALTE-EMPEDOS (OLYMPIC VILLAGE
48 | LANDSCAPING) GREECE 45.33 2010-2014 0 0
49 | 3V AKTOR SA -SOCIETE FRANCAISE EQUIPEMENT HOSPALIER SA GREECE 65.00 2010-2014 0 0
JN THEMELIODOMI — AKTOR SA- ATHENA SA &TE - PASSAVANT
50 MASCHINENTECHNIK GmbH - GIOVANNI PUTIGNANO & FIGLISr| GREECE 53.33 2008-2014 0 0
JN AKTOR SA — DOMOTECHNIKI SA — THEMELIODOMI SA TERNA
51 SA - ETETH SA GREECE 25.00 2010-2014 0 0
52 JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
53 JIV AKTOR SA -ERGOSYN SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
54 JV AKTOR COPRI KUWAIT 50.00 -
55 JV QATAR QATAR 40.00 -
56 JV AKTOR SA - AKTOR BULGARIA SA BULGARIA 100.00 2010-2014 0 0
57 CONSORTIUM BIOSAR ENERGY - AKTOR BULGARIA 100.00 2010-2014 0 0
58 J/V TOMI SA — HLEKTOR SA (ANO LIOSIA LANDFILL -SECTION I1) GREECE 59.61 2010-2014 0 0
59 J/V TOMI - MARAGAKIS ANDR. (2005) GREECE 65.00 2010-2014 0 0
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60 | J/V TOMI SA - ELTER SA GREECE 50.00 2009-2014 0 0
61 | JIV TOMI SA — AKTOR SA GREECE 100.00 2010-2014 0 0
62 | JIV KASTOR SA—TOMI SA GREECE 100.00 2010-2014 0 0
63 | JIV KASTOR SA— ELTER SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
64 | JIV KASTOR SA—ERTEKA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
65 | JIV TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) SA GREECE 60 2010-2014 0 0
66 | JIV ERGO SA— TOMI SA GREECE 15.00 2010-2014 0 0
67 | JIV TOMI SA- ATOMON SA (CORFU PORT) GREECE 50.00 |  2010-2014 0 0
68 | JIV TOMI SA ~HELECTOR SA GREECE 78.25 2007-2014 0 0
69 | JIV KASTOR - P&C DEVELOPMENT GREECE 70.00 2010-2014 0 0
70 | JIV AKTOR SA ARCHIRODON-BOSKALIS(THERMAIKI ODOS) GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
71 | JIV AKTOR SA - ERGO SA GREECE 55.00 2010-2014 0 0
72 | JIV AKTOR SA ~ATHENA GREECE 50.00 2009-2014 0 0
73 | JIV AKTOR —INTRAKAT - J & P AVAX GREECE 71.67 2007-2014 0 0
74 | IV HOCHTIEF-AKTOR-J&P-VINCI-AEGEK-ATHENA GREECE |  19.30 2010-2014 0 0
75 | JIV VINCI-J&P AVAX-AKTOR-HOCHTIEF-ATHENA GREECE 17.00 2009-2014 0 0
76 | JIV AKTOR SA — XANTHAKIS SA GREECE 55.00 2010-2014 0 0
77 | JIV KASTOR — ERGOSYN SA GREECE 70.00 2010-2014 0 0
78 | JIV AKTOR SA — ERGO SA GREECE 65.00 2010-2014 0 0
79 | J.V AKTOR SA —PANTRAK GREECE 80.00 2010-2014 0 0
80 | J.V AKTOR SA - PANTECHNIKI GREECE 70.00 2009-2014 0 0
81 | J.V AKTOR SA - TERNA - J&P GREECE 33.33 2010-2014 0 0
82 | J.V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A435) GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
83 | J.V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A437) GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
84 | J.V ELTER SA—KASTOR SA GREECE 15.00 2010-2014 0 0
85 | J.V TERNA — AKTOR GREECE 50.00 2009-2014 0 0
86 | J.V AKTOR SA - HOCHTIEF GREECE 33.00 2009-2014 0 0
87 | J.V AKTOR SA - POLYECO GREECE 52.00 2010-2014 0 0
88 | J.V AKTOR — MOCHLOS GREECE 70.00 2010-2014 0 0
89 | J.V AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA TREATMENT PLANT 1) GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
90 | J.V AKTOR SA- STRABAG AG GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
91 | JNV EDISON — AKTOR SA GREECE 35.00 2009-2014 0 0
92 | J.V AKTOR — TOXOTIS GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
93 | J.V“3V TOMI — HELECTOR’ — KONSTANTINIDIS GRECE 54.78 2008-2014 0 0
94 | JIV TOMI SA - AKTOR FACILITY MANAGEMENT GREECE 20.00 2010-2014 0 0
95 | J.V AKTOR — TOXOTIS "ANTHOUPOLI METRO" GREECE (500 2010-2014 0 0
96 | JIV AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA —GOLIOPOULOS SA GREECE|  48.00 2010-2014 0 0
97 | JIV AKTOR SA - IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.00 2010-2014 0 0
98 | JIV AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
99 | J/V ATOMON SA — TOMI SA GREECE 50.00 2009-2014 0 0
100 | JIV AKTOR SA — TOXOTIS SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
101 | JIV AKTOR SA - ELTER SA GREECE 70.00 2009-2014 0 0
102 | IV ERGOTEM —KASTOR- ETETH GREECE 15.00 2010-2014 0 0
103 | JNV LMN SA — KARALIS K. - TOMI SA GREECE 20.00 2010-2014 0 0
104 | J/V CONSTRUTEC SA —KASTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2009-2014 0 0

J/IV AKTOR SA - |. PAPAILIOPOULQOS SA - DEGREMONT SA-
105 | DEGREMONT SPA GREECE 30.00 2010-2014 0 0
106 | J/V AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - NGA NETWORK DEVELOMENT GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
107 | JIV TOMI SA — AP. MARAGAKIS GREEN WORKS SA GREE 65.00 2011-2014 0 0
108 | J/V TOMI SA - AITHRA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0

IV TOMI SA -MEXIS L-TATSIS K. PARTNERSHIP (JV TONSA-

TOPIODOMI PARTNERSHIP) - TATSIS K. GP (JV TOMI SATOPODOMI
109 | GP) GREECE 50.00 2010-2014 0 0
110 | IV AKTOR- J&PTERNA GREECE 60.00 2012-2014 0 0
111 | JV J & PAVAX- AKTOR GREECE 50.00 2012-2014 0 0
112 | JIV JGPAVAX AE-AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2012-2014 0 0
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113 | JV"JVMYVA SA - AAGIS SA"MESOGEIOS SAKASTOR SA GREECE 15.00 2012-2014 0] 0
114 | JV AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 50.00 2012-2014 0 0
115 | JV AKTOR SA - TERNA (STYLIDA) GREECE 50.00 2012-2014 0 0
116 | JVAIAS SA - KASTOR SA/LARISSA WEST BYPASS GREECE 50.0 2012-2014 0 0
117 | JVAIAS SA -KASTOR SA /RACHOULA ZARKOS GREECE 50.00 2012-2014 q 0
118 | JV AKTOR- PORTO KARRASGNTRAKAT (JV OF ESXATIA STREAM) GREECE 50.00 2012-291 0 0
119 | J/VAKTOR-TERNA (NEW PATRAS PORT) GREECE 30.00 2012-2014 q 0
JV AKTOR SA -ERETBO SA (CONSTRUCTION OF MODERN ART
120 | MUSEUM) GREECE 50.00 2012-2014 0 0
121 | JV AKTOR ARBIOGAZ TURKEY 51.00 - 0 0
122 | JV AKTOR SAM. SAVIDIS & SONS LEMESOS LTD CYPRUS 80.00 - 0 0
123 | J/V AKTOR SA IMEK HELLAS SA GREECE 75.00 2013-2014 0 0
JIV ILEKTOR SA - KASTOR SA (EGNATIA HIGH FENCING
124 | CONSTRUCTION PROJECT) GREECE 30.00 2013-2014 0 0
125 | J/V TOMI SA — LAMDA TECHNIKI SA GREECE 27.32 2013-2014 0 0
126 | J/V TRIKAT SA - TOMI SA GREECE 30.00 2013-2014 0 0
127 | J/V AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 65.78 2013-2014 0 0
128 | J/V AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2013-2014 0 0
129 | J/V KASTOR SA - ILEKTOR SA (BIOL OF CHANIA) GRECE 61.78 2013-2014 0 0
130 | J/V KASTOR SA — CONSTRUTEC SA GREECE 50.00 2013-2014 0 0
131 | J/V AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - INTRAKAT GREECE 2450 2013-2014 0 0
JIV BIOLIAP SA - D.MASTORIS - A MITROGIANNIS & SIAEE &
132 | M.STOGIANNOS & SIA EE - TOMI SA GREECE 25.00 2013-2014 0 0
133 | J/V AKTOR SA - ALSTOM TRANSPORT SA GREECE 65.00 2013-2014 0 0
134 | AKTOR SA - TERNA SA GREECE 50.00 2013-2014 0 0
135 | AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 66.09 2013-2014 0 0
136 | I.S.F.(AKTOR-AL JABER J.V.) QATAR 50.00 2013-2014 0 0
137 | AKTOR SA - INTRAKAT GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
138 | J& PAVAX SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
139 | J& PAVAX SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
140 | IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
141 | IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
142 | IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
143 | IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
144 | IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
145 | IONIOS SA - AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
146 | IONIOS SA-AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
147 | IONIOS SA-AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2014 1 RPY
148 | IONIOS SA-AKTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2014 1 RPY
149 | J&P AVAX SA-AKTOR SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
150 | AKTOR SA - TERNA SA - PORTO KARRAS SA GREECE .33 2014 1 RPY
151 | AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - TERNA SA GREECE 33.33 2014 1 RPY
152 | AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA - TERNA SA GREECE 24.44 2014 1 RPY
153 | AKTOR SA — ATHINA SA GREECE 70.00 2014 1 RPY
154 | AKTOR SA - J&P AVAX SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
AKTOR SA —CHRIST.D.KONSTANTINIDIS SA CONSTRUCTION
155 | COMPANY GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
156 | ENIPEAS SA - KASTOR SA — KAPPA TECHNIKI SA GREE 33.34 2014 1 RPY
157 | ERGO SA - ERGODOMI SA - KASTOR SA GREECE 30.00 2014 1 RPY
158 | IONIOS SA - TOMI SA GREECE 50.00 2014 1 RPY
159 | TOMI SA-ALSTOM TRANSPORT SA GREECE 75.00 2014 1 RPY
160 | ALYSIJV-GOLD LINE UNDERGROUND-DOHA QATAR 32.00 - 1 RPY
161 | J/V AKTOR SA —ILEKTOR SA BULGARIA 50.00 - 1 RPY

The following joint ventures were included in thensolidated financial statements of FY2013 but weoé

included in the consolidated financial statemehtsY2014 as they were dissolved in 2014:
> JIV AKTOR SA - THEMELIODOMI SA — ATHENA SA

> JIV AKTOR SA - ATHENA SA -EMPEDOS SA

» JIV AKTOR SA —ATHENA SA-THEMELIODOMI SA

» JIV AKTOR SA — ATHENA SA

> JIV ATHENA SA — AKTOR SA
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» JIV TOMI SA — CHOROTECHNIKI SA
> J.IV AKTOR - ATHENA (PSITALIA A437)

9 Investments in subsidiaries

The change in the carrying value of parent comanyestments in consolidated entities are asvaio

All amounts in Euro thousands.

COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
At beginning of year 107,508 104,437
Additions - 560
Increase in interest held - 2,519
Disposal of subsidiaries - (9)
At end of year 107,508 107,508
10 Investments in associates & joint ventures
All amounts in Euro thousands.
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
At beginning of year 9,207 5,015 2,445 2,317
Foreign exchange differences 11 17 - -
Additions 0 4,563 0 128
(Disposals) (4,508) (18) (220) -
Share of profit/loss (after tax) (362) (420) - -
Other changes in equity 55 49 - -
At end of year 4,403 9,207 2,226 2,445
Summarised financial information for associateslfierfinancial year 2014:
All amounts in Euro thousands.
Ref. INTEREST
No COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES REVENUE PROFIT/(LOSS) HELD (%)
1 BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,291 9,574 L (63) 35.00
2 ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 264 32 - (15) 40.0
3 CHELIDONA SA 0 0 - - 50.00
4 AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,742 1,647 1,441 12 50.00
5 ELLAKTOR VENTURES LTD 322 478 E -109 25.0
LEVASHOVO WASTE
6 | MANAGEMENT PROJECT LLC 476 1,052 (313 25.00
7 GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC 2,553 3,425 2,519 (83 50.p
8 STRACTOR CONSTRUCTION SA 43 50.00
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Summarised financial information for associateslierfinancial year 2013:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Ref. INTEREST

No COMPANY ASSETS LIABILITIES | REVENUE | PROFIT/(LOSS) HELD (%)
1 | BEPE KERATEAS SA 8,254 9,47% (178) 35.00
2 | ELLINIKES ANAPLASEIS SA 266 18 - @ 40.0(
3 | CHELIDONA SA 157 85 - - 50.0Q
4 | KINIGOS SA 20,219 12,233 938 6B 50.00
5 | AKTOR ASPHALTIC LTD 1,909 1,826 749 (268 50.00
6 | ELLAKTOR VENTURES LTD 421 468 - -28 25.0

LEVASHOVO WASTE

7 | MANAGEMENT PROJECT LLC 480 863 (278 25.0p
8 | GREENWOOD BIOSAR LLC 827 964 4,495 (1,016) 50.00

11 Joint operations

The following amounts represent the share of opesah the Joint Operations and particularly initlassets and
liabilities as well as their revenues and expensede 2.2.2). The following amounts are includedtlie
Statement of Financial Position, as well as inlttteme Statement of the Group and the Company 20E¥ and

FY2013:

Amounts in Euro thousands

Receivables
Non-current assets
Current assets

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Equity
Revenue

(Expenses)
Profit/(loss) after tax

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
20,850 8,796 20,804 8,703
487,187 380,224 472,206 365,245
508,036 389,020 493,009 373,948
49,230 2,954 49,119 2,953
472,737 397,120 458,031 458,031
521,968 400,074 507,150 460,984
(13,931) (11,054) (14,141) (87,036)
302,071 177,587 291,308 163,629
(294,737) (166,294) (283,812) (152,142)
7,334 11,294 7,496 11,486

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).
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12 Available-for-sale financial assets

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Note
At beginning of year
Additions
(Disposals)
Reclassification adjustment of available-for-sale
financial assets reserve
Impairment

Fair value adjustment recognized through Equity:
increase/(decrease) 21

At end of year

Non-current assets

Available for sale financial assets are analysefdlésys:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Listed securities:

Shares — Greece (in Euro)

Shares — Foreign countries (in CAD)
Non-listed securities:

Shares —Greece

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
63,325 144,545 159 83
- 2,300 - 200
- (508) - (508)
- 474 - 474
(8,583) ; ; .
22,694 (83,486) (90) (90)
77,436 63,325 69 159
77,436 63,325 69 159
77,436 63,325 69 159
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
67 156 67 156
77,342 63,142 - ;
27 27 3 3
77,436 63,325 69 159

In FY2014, the amount of euro8,583 within Impairmesfers to the impairment of shares of mining camps
(note 21), while to the same investment also retbes Fair value adjustment recognized through Bquit

(amounting to euro 22,784 th.).

In the comparative information for FY2013, the Fa#ue adjustment recognized through Equity hasltexss
mainly (to the amount euro 83,395 th.) from therebaf mining companies held by the Group.

The fair value of non-listed securities is detemirby discounting the estimated future cash fldvesed on the
market rate and the required return on investmesitnailar risk.

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

(54) / (81)



‘ AKTOR SA
AKTS2P Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014

13 Prepayments for long-term leases

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
At beginning of year 401 - 401 -
Additions 516 417 516 417
(Charge for the year) (62) (16) (62) (16)
At beginning of year 855 401 855 401
Non-current assets 792 339 792 339
Current assets 62 62 62 62
855 401 855 401

The total amount of prepayments for long-term lsatezives from the Group's Joint Operations andews the

lease of land for lignite mining.

14 Derivative financial instruments

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Current liabilities
Foreign currency swap contracts for cash flow
hedging 225 - 225 -
Total 225 - 225 -
Total liabilities 225 - 225 -

Total non-current liabilities, amounting to eurc62th. (31.12.2013: euro O th.) relates to ALYS J\WBI® LINE

UNDERGROUND DOHA.

GROUP

COMPANY

31-Dec-14 3

1-Dec-13

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13

Information for foreign currency swap contracts
for cash flow hedging

Nominal value of foreign currency exchange
forward contracts (in foreign currency) 6,400
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15 Inventories

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Raw materials 16,253 17,444 14,392 11,570
Finished products 10,851 13,366 3,353 5,061
Prepayment for purchase of inventories - 13 - 13
Other 3,138 1,353 1,679 967
Total 30,242 32,177 19,424 17,611
Less: Provisions for obsolete, slow-moving or
damaged inventory:
Raw materials 5 5 5 5
5 5 5 5
Net realisable value 30,237 32,172 19,419 17,605
*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).
16 Receivables
All amounts in Euro thousands.
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Trade receivables (construction contracts reteation
excluded) 238,571 290,895 197,602 236,150
Construction contracts retentions (for projectscexen) 53,080 51,934 51,437 38,134
Trade receivables — Total 291,651 342,830 249,039 274,284
Trade receivables — Related parties 45,749 38,687 46,344 38,605
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (29,898) (31,623) (24,561) (25,564)
Trade Receivables — Net 307,501 349,894 270,822 287,325
Prepayments 1,389 2,212 798 1,148
Amounts due from customers for contract work 320,109 144,573 260,102 112,450
Income tax prepaid 263 489 19 292
Receivables from joint arrangements 121,454 112,965 116,957 107,513
Loans granted to related parties 295 - 9,624 729
Prepayments for operating leases 5,367 95 304 16
Dividends receivable - - 89,295 87,600
Other receivables 209,836 171,060 195,180 150,702
Other receivables - Related parties 17,870 12,165 114,670 102,387
Less: Provision for impairment of Other Receivables (10,531) (10,766) (10,207) (10,207)
Total 973,552 782,687 1,047,564 839,953
Non-current assets 21,406 1,731 20,480 1,556
Current assets 952,146 780,956 1,027,084 838,397
973,552 782,687 1,047,564 839,953
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The account “Other Receivables” is analysed aevi

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Sundry debtors

Greek State (withholding & prepaid taxes) & soseturity
Accrued income

Prepaid expenses

Prepayments to creditors/suppliers

Cheques (post-dated) receivable

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13*
77,955 75,408 86,431 78,622
51,869 29,843 39,219 18,710
1,134 1,779 950 1,594

13,645 11,318 12,712 7,347

55,616 41,765 6289 37,896

9,617 10,949 6,241 6,534
209,836 171,060 195,180 150,702

Trade and Other receivables measured at amorttstdased on the effective interest rate methodcuatrio euro
540.6 million in FY2014 and euro 565.4 million ity 2013 for the Group, and to euro 697.5 million 2014
and euro 669.4 million in FY2013 for the Company.

The movement on provision for impairment of tradeeaivables is shown in the following table:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Balance at 1 January 2013*

Provision for impairment

Foreign exchange differences

Balance at 31 December 2013*
Provision for impairment

Receivables written-off during the year
Foreign exchange differences

Balance at 31 December 2014

GROUP COMPANY
20,901 14,981
10,726 10,585

4 @)
31,623 25,564
1,883 1,449
(3,614) (2,451)

7 @)
29,899 24,561

The movement on provision for impairment of Othec&vables is shown in the following table:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Balance at 1 January 2013
Provision for impairment
Receivables written-off during the year

Balance at 31 December 2013

Receivables written-off during the year
Balance at 31 December 2014

GROUP COMPANY
10,677 10,207
88 -
10,766 10,207
(235) -
10,531 10,207
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The ageing analysis of the Trade Receivables balasof 31 December 2014 is the following:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Not overdue and not impaired
Overdue:

3-6 months

6 months to 1 year

Over 1 year

Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

Trade receivables - Net

Receivables are analysed in the following currencie

All amounts in Euro thousands.

EURO

KUWAITI DINAR (KWD)

US DOLLAR ($)

ROMANIAN NEW LEU (RON)

POUND STERLING (£)

SERBIAN DINAR (RSD)

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED)
QATARI RIYAL (QAR)

BULGARIAN LEV (BGN)

ALBANIAN LEK (ALL)

RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB)

SUDANESE POUND (SDG)

TURKISH LIRA (TRY)
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM)
FYROM DINAR (MKD)

CHILEAN PESO (CLP)

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
138,453 170,759 100,977 128,313
16,078 30,405 14,152 25,511
27,310 56,287 25,107 46,960
155,559 124,065 155,147 112,105
337,400 381,517 295,383 312,888
(29,898) (31,623) (24,561) (25,564)
307,501 349,894 270,822 287,325
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
628,640 533,745 729,513 636,073
46,529 45,184 43,725 42,881
25,700 27,211 12,945 5,788
17,559 24,363 17,400 24,220
6,618 417 - -
3,572 10,165 3,539 10,232
7,209 16,485 - 279
218,897 110,224 232,091 113,319
6,089 4,216 5,685 4,291
9,134 8,419 1,081 675
340 184 340 184
3 - - -
241 515 241 515
13 62 - -
1,004 1,496 1,004 1,496
2,004 - - -
973,552 782,687 1,047,564 839,953

Carrying amount of non-current receivables appraxés their fair value.

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

17 Restricted cash

The Restricted Cash of the Group as of 31.12.20dduated to euro 15,185 th. (31.12.2013: euro 19th90In

FY2014 the largest part comes from the parent compeK TOR SA amounting to euro 14,769 th. In FY2013,
the total amount consists of euro 16,158 th. froKiTAR SA and euro 3,032 th. from the subsidiary COPR

AKTOR.

Restricted Cash is analysed in the following curiest
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All amounts in Euro thousands

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
EURO 2,374 11,128 2,374 11,128
US DOLLAR ($) . 3,032 . .
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 22 - - -
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 394 - - -
QATARI RIYAL (QAR) 3,027 - 3,027 -
ROMANIAN NEW LEU (RON) 9,368 5,030 9,368 5,030
15,185 19,190 14,769 16,158

Restricted cash refer to bank deposits which aeel @s collateral for the issuance of Letters of r&nize by
international credit institutions that are highéyed by International Credit Rating Agencies.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Cash in hand 2,046 1,363 532 354
Sight deposits 150,684 203,223 112,654 177,250
Time deposits 28,289 22,600 27,363 22,216
Total 181,020 227,186 140,549 199,820

Time deposits of the current and the previous fireryear at group level come mainly from the pacmpany
AKTOR SA.

The following table shows the rates of depositsqoedit rating class by Standard & Poor (S&P).

GROUP COMPANY

Percentage of sight and time deposits Percentagksight and time deposits

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*

Financial Institution Rating (S&P)

A 3.3% 0.1% 0.0% 0.0%
AA- 1.7% 0.7% 0.0% 0.5%
A- 1.9% 3.1% 2.3% 3.3%
CCC 74.6% 89.8% 80.2% 91.2%
NR 18.4% 6.3% 17.4% 5.0%
TOTAL 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

At 31.12.2014, 82% and 92% of sight and time deapadithe Group and the Company respectively (32013:
90% and 91% respectively), were held in systemiee®banks or their subsidiaries, which have lowmmcredit
rating due to the Greek debt crisis. However ltudthdve noted that the same banks provide mosteoftal credit
facilities (letters of guarantee, loans, etc.) ¢gdrio the Group.

Time deposit interest rates are determined thraoegotiation with selected credit institutions witiference to
interbank Euribor rates with similar to the Groupé&riods of investment (e.g. week, month etc.).
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Cash and cash equivalents are analysed in thevalipcurrencies:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
EURO 135,088 207,305 112,185 185,644
KUWAITI DINAR (KWD) 60 49 9 6
BAHRAINI DINAR (BHD) 154 161 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 556 137 39 94
ROMANIAN NEW LEU (RON) 9,012 4,092 8,110 3,536
POUND STERLING (£) 5,259 1,269 - -
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 488 1,170 7 1,091
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 5,111 1,325 - -
QATARI RIYAL (QAR) 22,014 9,900 19,626 8,213
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 371 744 218 659
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 25 212 23 102
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 45 5 45 5
SUDANESE POUND (SDG) 44 - - -
TURKISH LIRA (TRY) 273 458 273 458
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 5 347 - -
FYROM DINAR (MKD) 14 12 14 12
CHILEAN PESO (CLP) 2,500 - - -
181,020 227,186 140,549 199,820

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

19 Non-current assets held for sale

During the 1st quarter of 2014, the sale of thdding at Kavalieratou Str., in Nea Kifissia, wasmgaeted. At
31.12.2013, the said asset was presented as nantasset held for sale. The building had beeasored at
fair value less costs to sell, which had been eg#éthat euro 4,516 th. and was lower than its tagryalue. The
impairment loss amounting to euro 3,194 th. wasgaised in the Income Statement of the reportingogdn

Other operating income/expenses (note 29).

20 Share capital & share premium reserve

All amounts are in Euro thousands except for thaimer of shares.

COMPANY

Share premium

Number of shares Share capital reserve Total
1-Jan-13 46,582,300 139,747 72,789 212,536
31-Dec-13 46,582,300 139,747 72,789 212,536
1-Jan-14 46,582,300 139,747 72,789 212,536
31-Dec-14* 46,582,300 139,747 72,789 212,536

The nominal value per share is 3 euro each.
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21 Other reserves

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP

1 January 2013
Foreign exchange differences

Transfer from/to retained earnings
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for
sale financial assets

Reclassification adjustment of available-
for-sale financial assets reserve

Actuarial gains/(losses)

31 December 2013

1 January 2014
Foreign exchange differences
Transfer from/to retained earnings

Changes in fair value of financial assets
available for sale/Cash flow hedge
Reclassification adjustment due to
impairment of investment in mining
companies

Reclassification
Actuarial gains/(losses)

31 December 2014

Statutory Special Tax-free Available- FX Cash flow  Actuarial Other Total
reserve reserves reserves for-sale difference hedging gains/(loss reserves
financial sreserves  reserves  es)reserve
assets
reserves
20,672 60,001 89,408 14,608 (2,972) - (801) - 1899
- - - - (3,127) - - - (3,127)
29 - - - - - - - 29
- - - (83,486) - - - - (83,486)
- - - 474 - - - - 474
- - - - - - 328 328
20,700 60,001 89,408 (68,404) (6,098) - (473) - 18,
20,700 60,001 89,408 (68,404) (6,098) - (473) - 183,
- - - - 5,473 - - 5,473
4,257 (3,357) (13,841) - - - - - (12,941)
- - - 22,694 - (225) - - 22,469
- - - 45,575 - - - - 45,575
- - (75,567) - - - 75,567 -
- - - - - - (568) - (568)
24,958 56,644 - (135) (626) (225) (1,041) 75,567 5,151

Due to the prolonged decrease in the fair valughef Group's investments in mining companies, wlioh
included in available-for-sale financial assets] #me assessment that there is objective evidemtieating the
impairment of the financial asset, the accumuldtess as at 30.06.2014 amounting to euro 45,575v#s
reclassified from Available-for-Sale Financial Ass®eserve to the Income Statement in Other Exgerde
Income Statement was also charged with the amduero 8,583 th., due to additional impairmentiagson the
reporting date 31.12.2014 (note 13). The total athaharged in the income statement stands at elid®8 th.

(note 29).

Out of the increase of euro 5,473 th. reported®62014 in FX differences reserve, the associateb®iGroup
account for euro 11 th. Out of the decrease of &t@7 th. reported for FY2013 in FX differenceseme, the
associates of the Group account for euro 17 th.
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COMPANY
Statutory Special Tax-free Available- FX Cash flow Actuarial Other Total
reserve reserves  reserves for-sale difference hedging gains/(loss reserves
financial s reserve reserves  es) reserve
assets
reserves
1 January 2013* 18,082 59,215 84,891 (429) (1,184) - (626) - 159,94
Foreign exchange differences - - - - (1,379) - - - (1,379)
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for
sale financial assets - - - (90) - - - - (90)
Reclassification adjustment of available-
for-sale financial assets reserve - - - 474 - - - - 474
Actuarial gains/(losses) - - - - - - 258 - 258
31 December 2013* 18,082 59,215 84,891 (45) (2,563) - (368) - 159,212
1 January 2014 18,082 59,215 84,891 (45) (2,563) - (368) - 159,212
Foreign exchange differences - - - - 1,179 - - - 1,179
Transfer from/to retained earnings 4,155 @) (11,868) - - - - - (7,721)
Changes in fair value of financial assets
available for sale/Cash flow hedge - - - (90) - (225) - - (315)
Reclassification - - (73,023) - - - - 73,023
Actuarial gains/(losses) - - - - - - (490) - (490)
31 December 2014 22,237 59,207 - (135) (1,384) (225) (859) 73,023 1,865

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

(a) Statutory reserve

Articles 44 and 45 of Codified Law 2190/1920 statal how the statutory reserve is formed and usettast 5%
of each year’s realised net profit must be withheldorm a statutory reserve, until the accumulatatutory
reserve amount equals at least the 1/3 of the stapital. Upon decision of the Ordinary General g of
Shareholders, the statutory reserve may not befoseehy other purpose but to cover losses.

(b) Special reserves

Reserves of this category have been formed uposide®f the Ordinary General Meeting in past yedrsnot
have any specific designation and may thereforadeel for any purpose, upon decision of the OrditGeperal
Meeting.

(c) Tax-free reserves

Tax-free reserves of euro 75,567 th. at Group laewdl euro 73,023 th. at Company level that do aotpdy with
the provisions of paragraph 12 of article 70 of L4dv2/2013 have been transferred to Other Reserves.
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22 Borrowings

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Long-term borrowings
Bank borrowings

Finance lease liabilities
Bond loans

Loans from related parties

Total long-term borrowings

Short-term loans

Bank overdrafts

Bank borrowings

Bond loans

Finance lease liabilities
Loans from related parties
Total short-term borrowings

Total borrowings

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
- 97 - 97
449 939 449 606
54,706 47,922 45,249 45,249
- 5,000 - -
55,156 53,958 45,698 45,951
63 813 9 53
110,919 36,456 87,647 28,206
1,936 44,096 - 35,056
490 554 157 199
6,679 1,130 3,122 2,716
120,086 83,049 90,935 66,229
175,242 137,007 136,633 112,181

Exposure to changes in interest rates and the datepricing are set out in the following table:

GROUP
FIXED FLOATING INTEREST RATE
INTEREST upto6 6-12
RATE months months Total
31-Dec-13
Total borrowings 6,890 130,117 - 137,007
6,890 130,117 - 137,007
31-Dec-14
Total borrowings 25,474 141,029 8,739 175,242
25,474 141,029 8,739 175,242
COMPANY
FIXED FLOATING INTEREST RATE
INTEREST upto 6 6—-12
RATE months months Total
31-Dec-13*
Total borrowings 102 112,078 - 112,181
- 112,078 - 112,181
31-Dec-14
Total borrowings 19,084 108,810 8,739 136,633
19,084 108,810 8,739 136,633
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The maturities of non-current borrowings are aofes:

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14* 31-Dec-13*
Between 1 and 2 years 47,514 6,219 45,403 559
From 2 to 5 years 6,566 46,405 295 45,392
Over 5 years 1,076 1,335 - -
55,156 53,958 45,698 45,951

From the total amount of borrowings, euro 25.5 nafer to fixed interest rate loans with an averaderest rate
of 4.43% (2013: euro 6.9 mil. with an average ies¢rate of 4.83%). The remaining balance amourttreuro
149.8 mil. (2013: euro 130.1 mil.) refers to flotinterest rate loans (e.g. loans in euro, Eundhas a margin).

Borrowings are analysed in the following currencies

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
EURO 128,793 124,382 109,213 102,771
US DOLLAR ($) 3,787 1,130 2,147 102
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM
(AED) 1,914 760 - -
QATARI RIYAL (QAR) 35,423 10,735 19,999 9,308
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 4,348 - 4,348 -
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 977 - 926 -
175,242 137,007 136,633 112,181

In addition, as at 31.12.2013, AKTOR SA had issuerporate guarantees for euro 644.8 million (32Q23:
euro 232.6 million) to guarantee for companies it operations in which it has an interest, maitd ensure
the availability of credit facilities from banks suppliers.

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by diseting estimated future cash flows, using discaat#s which
represent the current conditions in the bankingketar

The fair value of current borrowings approximathsirtt carrying amount as the impact of the discdantot
significant. The fair value of the fixed intereate loans of the Group, with carrying amount ofoe26.5 million,
is estimated at euro 25.5 million (31.12.2013: fdie value of fixed interest rate loans with camyiamount of
euro 6.9 mil. was estimated at euro 7.2 mil.).

Finance lease liabilities are analysed as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Finance lease liabilities — minimum lease
payments
No later than 1 year 509 587 171 219
Between 1 and 5 years 467 975 467 638
Total 975 1,563 638 857
Less: Future financial charges of finance leases (36) (69) (32) (51)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 940 1,494 606 805

The present value of finance lease commitmentsayaed below:
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GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*

No later than 1 year 490 554 157 199
Between 1 and 5 years 449 939 449 606
Total 1,494 606 805

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

23 Grants
All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13

At beginning of year 2,914 2,480 329 350
Additions - 567 - -
Transfer to profit/loss (Other income-
expenses) (168) (133) (19) (21)
At end of year 2,746 2,914 310 329

24  Trade and other payables

The Group’s liabilities resulting from its tradetiaities are free of interest.
All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*

Trade payables 253,492 241,393 194,526 174,857
Payables to joint arrangements 46,712 41,906 45,316 40,549
Accrued expenses 35,989 20,225 29,022 9,327
Social security and other taxes 25,209 22,960 18,291 18,119
Amounts due to customers for contract work 33,050 39,087 28,295 34,227
Other liabilities 411,675 352,910 359,255 308,090
Total liabilities — Related parties 27,985 30,189 97,340 60,891
Total 834,112 748,670 772,044 646,061
Non-current 46,356 7,863 46,352 1,843
Current 787,756 740,807 725,692 644,218
Total 834,112 748,670 772,044 646,061
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Other Liabilities are analysed as follows:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Customer advances and other payables 312,075 7B9,09 248,312 257,281
Liabilities to subcontractors 81,457 51,687 72,618 40,596
Payments for services provided and employee fees
payable 18,143 12,132 38,325 10,214
411,675 352,910 359,255 308,090

Trade and other payables are denominated in theniolg currencies:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
EURO 454,117 497,905 405,005 441,101
KUWAITI DINAR (KWD) 36,622 29,051 41,790 39,223
BAHRAINI DINAR (BHD) 232 206 - -
US DOLLAR ($) 27,033 37,893 1,197 1,825
ROMANIAN NEW LEU (RON) 9,225 18,870 15,082 19,186
POUND STERLING (£) 8,049 1,483 - 1
SERBIAN DINAR (RSD) 33,104 27,863 36,002 27,863
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES DIRHAM (AED) 12,461 27,615 - 76
QATARI RIYAL (QAR) 226,335 92,170 252,670 104,422
SAUDI ARABIAN RIYAL (SAR) - - - -
BULGARIAN LEV (BGN) 5,220 4,998 5,122 5,817
ALBANIAN LEK (ALL) 7,896 5,104 3,390 1,799
RUSSIAN RUBLE (RUB) 24 63 24 63
TURKISH LIRA (TRY) 167 222 167 222
BOSNIA-HERZEGOVINA MARK (BAM) 884 867 - -
FYROM DINAR (MKD) 11,595 4,360 11,595 4,464
CHILEAN PESO (CLP) 1,149 - - -

834,112 748,670 772,044 646,061

Trade and Other Payables are measured at amodirtdising the effective interest rate method andumt to
euro 528.6 million for 2014 (2013: euro 433.1 roitl) for the Group and euro 497.3 million (2013:@669.3
million) for the Company.

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).
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25 Deferred income tax
All amounts in Euro thousands.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset whiieme is an applicable legal right to offset therent tax assets
against the current tax liabilities and when théeded income taxes concern the same tax authdritg. offset

amounts for the Group are the following:

GROUP
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Deferred tax liabilities:
Recoverable after 12 months 8,874 7,504
8,874 7,504
Deferred tax assets:
Recoverable after 12 months 3,267 8,338
3,267 8,338
5,608 (834)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax ati®as follows:

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Balance at beginning of the year (834) 8,117
Deferred Tax charged to the income 6,647 9,272)
statement
Deferred Ta>'( th(ough other (200) 27
comprehensive income
Acquisition/disposal of subsidiary - 313
Foreign exchange differences (5) (29)
Balance at end of the year 5,608 (834)

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitiesndutie year, without taking into account offsettmfgbalances
pertaining to the same tax authority, are the foithg:

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accelerated

tax Construction Assets under Other Total
depreciation contracts finance lease

1-Jan-13 6,264 25,682 338 503 32,787
Deferred tax charged to the income

statement (261) (3,331) 198 742 (2,651)
Acquisition/absorption of subsidiary 314 - - - 314
Foreign exchange differences (29) - - - (29)
31-Dec-13 6,299 22,351 536 1,245 30,431

(67) / (81)



‘ AKTOR SA
AKTS2P Annual Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS
for the year from 1 January to 31 December 2014
1-Jan-14 6,299 22,351 536 1,245 30,431
g)t:ftzrr;eedmtax charged to the income (798) 16,980 (151) (809) 15,222
Foreign exchange differences (5) - - - (5)
31-Dec-14 5,495 39,331 385 437 45,648
Deferred tax assets:
Accelerated Construction Finance lease Actuarial
tax Tax losses s gains/(losses) Other Total
depreciation contracts liabilities reserve
1-Jan-13 86 - 21,680 408 201 2,295 24,671
Deferred tax charged to the 129 2513 4831 (19) ) (833) 6,621
income statement
Deferred Tax through other 8 ) ) ) (35) ) @7)
comprehensive income
Acquisition/absorption of 1 ) ) ) ) ) 1
subsidiary
31-Dec-13 225 2,513 26,511 388 166 1,462 31,266
1-Jan-14 225 2,513 26,511 388 166 1,462 31,266
Deferred tax charged to the 61 13,673 (4,988) (144) - (26) 8575
income statement
Deferred Tax through other ) ) ) ) 200 ) 200
comprehensive income
Acquisition/absorption of ) ) ) ) ) ) )
subsidiary
31-Dec-14 286 16,186 21,523 244 366 1,436 40,040
The offset amounts for the Group are the following:
COMPANY
All amounts in Euro thousands.
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Deferred tax liabilities:
Recoverable after 12 months 2,161 1,258
2,161 1,258
Deferred tax assets:
Recoverable after 12 months 2,802 7,811
2,802 7,811
(642) (6,553)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax ati®as follows:
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Balance at beginning of the year

Deferred Tax charged to the income statement (note

29)

Deferred Tax through other comprehensive income

Balance at end of the year

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
(6,553) 3,314
6,084 (9,895)
(172) 27
(642) (6,553)

Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilitiesnduttie year, without taking into account offsettmfgbalances
pertaining to the same tax authority, are the foithg:

Deferred tax liabilities:

1-Jan-13*

Accelerated

Deferred tax charged to the income statement

31-Dec-13*

1-Jan-14

Construction

Assets under

Deferred tax charged to the income statement

31-Dec-14

Deferred tax assets:

1-Jan-13*
Deferred tax charged to the income
statement

Deferred Tax through other
comprehensive income

31-Dec-13*

1-Jan-14
Deferred tax charged to the income
statement

Deferred Tax through other
comprehensive income

31-Dec-14

d tax contracts finance lease Other Total
epreciation
993 24,308 221 146 25,668
(389) (3,590) 96 747 (3,136)
604 20,718 317 893 22,532
604 20,718 317 893 22,532
(482) 15,945 (144) (698) 14,621
122 36,663 173 195 37,153
Accelerated . Finance Actuarial
tax Tax losses Construction lease gains/(losses) Other Total
P contracts o
depreciation liabilities reserve
14 - 20,133 201 201 1,805 22,354
1) 2,513 5,155 8 - (917) 6,758
- - - - (27) - 27)
13 2,513 25,288 209 174 888 29,085
13 2,513 25,288 209 174 888 29,085
35 13,487 (4,954) (52) - 20 8,537
- - - - 172 - 172
48 16,001 20,334 158 347 907 37,795

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).
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26 Retirement benefit obligations
All amounts in Euro thousands.

The amounts recognized in the Statement of FinhRaisition are the following:

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Liabilities in the Statement of Financial
Position for:
Retirement benefits 5,153 4,316 4,343 3,619
Total 5,153 4,316 4,343 3,619

The amounts recognized in the Income Statemernhar®llowing:

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14* 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Income statement charge for:
Retirement benefits 1,444 (58) 1,400 (129)
Total 1,444 (58) 1,400 (129)

The amounts recognized in the Statement of FinhRaisition are the following:

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Present value of unfunded obligations 5,153 4,316 343 3,619
Liability in the Statement of Financial
Position 5,153 4,316 4,343 3,619

The amounts recognized in the Income Statemerdsafellows:

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Current service cost 618 302 525 209
Interest cost 142 199 119 171
Past service cost - (628) - (555)
Curtailments 683 69 755 46
Total included in staff costs 1,444 (58) 1,400 @ap

The movement in the liability recognized in thet8taent of Financial Position is as follows:

GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Opening balance 4,316 5,873 3,619 5,081
Indemnities paid (2,375) (2,133) (1,338) (1,048)
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income 768 (367) 663 5)(28
Total expense charged in the income statement 1,444 (58) 1,400 (129)
Closing balance 5,153 4,316 4,343 3,619
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The principal actuarial assumptions used for actiogmpurposes both for the Group and the Compaay ar

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13

Discount rate 1.90% 3.30%
0,00% until
2016

and
Future salary increases subsequently 0.00%

2.509%

! Average annual long-term inflation = 2.50%

The weighted average term of the pension benefitthe Group is 16.09 years and for the Compang2lgears.

Analysis of non-discounted pension benefits exmkntaturity:

GROUP COMPANY

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Less than 1 year 111 152 108 118
Between 1 and 2 years 102 - 67 -
Between 2 and 5 years 153 307 110 185
Over 5 years 6,646 7,395 5,800 6,306
Total 7,011 7,854 6,086 6,609

The sensitivity analysis of pension benefits regy@hanges in the principal assumptions is as!

GROUP COMPANY
Change in Change in
assumption  Increase in Decrease in assumption Increase in  Decrease in
by assumption assumption by assumption assumption
Discount rate 0.50% -4.98% +4.98% 0.50% -5.01% +5.01%
f;fg"””era“o” scale change 0.50% +4.45% -4.45% 0.50% +4.49% -4.49%

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in the StatemeGomprehensive Income

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Profit/(loss) from changes in demographic assumgtio - - - -
Profit/(loss) from changes in financial assumptions 618 (673) 525 (591)
Experience gain/(losses) 150 307 138 306
Total 768 (367) 663 (285)
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27 Provisions

All amounts in Euro thousands.

1-Jan-13*
Additional provisions of the year

Unused provision amounts reversed
Foreign exchange differences

Provision amounts used during the year
31-Dec-13*

1-Jan-14
Additional provisions of the year

Unused provision amounts reversed
Foreign exchange differences

Provision amounts used during the year
31-Dec-14

Analysis of total provisions:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Non-current
Current

Total

GROUP COMPANY
Other Other
provisions Total provisions Total
36,420 36,420 34,934 34,934
5,117 5,117 4,004 4,004
(23) (23) (23) (23)
(321) (321) (257) (257)
(2,220) (2,220) (1,584) (1,584)
38,973 38,973 37,073 37,073
38,973 38,973 37,073 37,073
4,598 4,598 3,387 3,387
(2,314) (2,314) (2,255) (2,255)
769 769 607 607
(3,387) (3,387) (2,609) (2,609)
38,639 38,639 36,203 36,203
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
3,629 2,218 2,042 1,099
35,009 36,754 34,161 35,974
38,639 38,973 36,203 37,073

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).

Other provisions include at Group and Company leweamount of euro 28,371 th. pertaining to a [ziowi for
potential default of a foreign partner with whicle warticipate in a joint operation (2013: euro 28,8.).
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28

GROUP

All amounts in Euro thousands.

Note

Employee benefits
Cost of inventory
used

Depreciation of PPE 5
Amortisation of
intangible assets 6

Depreciation of

investment property 7
PPE repair and
maintenance

expenses

Operating lease

payments

Third party fees
Other

Total

COMPANY

All amounts in Euro
thousands.

Note

Employee benefits 31
Cost of inventory

used

Depreciation of PPE 5
Amortisation of

intangible assets 6
Depreciation of

investment property 7
PPE repair and
maintenance

expenses

Operating lease

payments

Third party fees
Other
Total

Expenses by category

1-Jan to 31-Dec-14

1-Jan to 313-Dec-13

31

Cost of Distribution ~ Administrative Cost of  Distribution ~ Administrative
sales costs expenses Total sales costs expenses Total
163,443 39 13,677 177,159 102,060 447 11,832 114,340
354,508 - 106 354,614 358,369 0 123 358,492
20,493 0 760 21,253 18,997 39 1,082 20,117
597 - 51 647 478 - 29 506
- - - - - - 139 139
22,327 4 603 22,934 17,393 44 324 17,762
26,494 8 2,361 28,862 16,893 143 2,011 19,047
434,948 69 10,230 445,246 240,517 375 7,086 247,979
96,574 31 6,390 102,996 77,597 975 5,233 83,804
1,119,384 151 34,177 1,153,712 832,304 2,024 27,858 862,186
1-Jan to 31-Dec-14 1-Jan to 3}-Dec-13*
Administra
Cost of  Distribution Administrativ Cost of Distribution tive
sales costs e expenses Total sales costs expenses Total
138,180 15 9,544 147,739 82,959 67 7,995 91,021
267,425 - 57 267,482 286,668 - 93 286,761
15,800 0 386 16,186 14,609 18 372 14,998
177 - 26 203 61 - 15 76
- - - - - - 139 139
19,767 4 151 19,922 14,606 10 272 14,889
25,920 8 1,898 27,826 14,303 16 1,774 16,093
382,010 22 6,830 388,861 171,876 78 5157 177,112
79,267 10 4,214 83,491 68,321 43 5,014 73,378
928,548 58 23,105 951,711 653,405 233 20,831 674,468

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).
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29 Other operating income/(expenses)

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to T Jan to
Note 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Income/(expenses) from investments & securitiesl(eing 109 591 - -
dividends)
Fair_ value gains/(losses) from the disposal ofrfoial assets R (479) R (481)
available for sale
Profit/(loss) from the disposal of subsidiaries (246) - - -
Profit/(loss) from the disposal of Associates 1,067 - - -
Profit/(loss) from the disposal of PPE 139 (34) 142 134
Amortisation of grants 23 168 133 19 21
Impairment of investment in mining companies (54,158) - - -
Impairment of investment property (-) - (3,194) - (3,194)
Rents 1,636 2,262 3,394 6,184
Receivables impairment provisions and write-offs - (9,931) - (9,379)
Other profit/(loss) 8,772 7,719 6,315 7,041
Total (42,514) -2,932 9,870 326
*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).
In FY2014, other operating income/expenses inclede 54,158 th. resulting from the investment iming
companies which is classified under financial asagtilable for sale (note 21).
30 Finance income/ (expenses) - net
All amounts in Euro thousands.
GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to 1% Jan to
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13* 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Interest expenses
- Bank loans (9,414) (9,936) (8,100) (8,649)
- Finance leases (33) (48) (20) (26)
(9,447) (9,984) (8,120) (8,675)
Interest income 3,155 6,477 2,972 5,230
Net interest income/(expenses) (6,292) (3,506) (5,148) (3,445)
Other finance costs
Commissions paid for letters of guarantee (1,389) (2,574) (2,300) (2,544)
Miscellaneous bank expenses (754) (1,648) (602) (936)
(2,143) (4,221) (1,902) (3,481)
Net gains/(losses) from the translation of
borrowings denominated in foreign currency (326) 416 (103) 159
Finance income/(expenses) - net (8,761) (7,312) (7,152) (6,767)

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigfmiote 2.2.2).
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31 Employee benefits

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to Janto
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*
Salaries and wages 136,743 82,853 115,563 65,576
Social security expenses 26,365 22,391 23,340 19,424
1,444 (58) 1,400 (129)
Pension costs - defined benefit plans
Other employee benefits 12,607 9,153 7,437 6,149
Total 177,159 114,340 147,739 91,021

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

32 Income tax
All amounts in Euro thousands.

At 23.07.2013 the new tax law 4172/23.07.2013 becaffective. The new law preserves the changesduted
by law 4110/23.01.2013 according to which the inedax rate for legal persons is set at 26% foafigear 2013
onwards and the withholding tax rate on dividendpraved after 1 January 2014 is set at 10%. Thatiegy
impact, resulting from the recalculation of theatedd income tax for the Group and the Companyherncome
tax amount recognised in the Income Statementeoftimparative period is presented in the folloviatge:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to T Jan to
Note 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*

Current tax 1,403 19,714 934 19,036
Unused tax provisions reversed (2,897) - (5,152)
Deferred income tax due to the increase of the
tax rate from 20% to 26% 2,248 ) 1,745
Deferred tax 25 6,647 (11,520) 6,084 (11,639)
Total 5,153 10,443 1,865 9,141

For the comparative period, that is FY2013, asidenfthe additional charges in Deferred income ththe
Income Statement amounting to euro 2,248 th. feiGhoup and 1,745 th. for the Company, the chahtgxaate
had a positive effect on Other Comprehensive In¢Enpenses) amounting to euro 60 th. for the Grang euro
47 th. for the Company. As a consequence, the bweffact of the tax rate change on Total Compreshen
Income/(Expenses) for the year amounts to a logsiaf 2,188 th. for the Group and also a loss of 4,698 th.
for the Company.
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According to tax law 4172/2013, as amended by 122342013, intra-group dividends, effective from ay
2014 onwards, are exempted from tax, providedttteparent company holds at least a minimum intefe50%
in the distributing legal entity for at least 2 senutive years and fulfils all other conditions\pded in article 48
of law 4172/2013.

According to paragraphs 12 and 13 of article 7Rair 4172/2013, the non-distributed or non-capitaliseserves
formed until 31 December 2013, which were formexdhrfrprofits that were not taxed when generated dubeir

exemption as provided by Law 2238/1994, from 1 aan2014 onwards must be offset against tax loasés
taxed at a tax rate of 26% or they must be indafigutaxed at a tax rate of 19% in case they as&riduted or
capitalised. The parent company as well as somthefsubsidiary companies offset tax losses, whilers

distributed tax-free reserves.

From 2011 onwards, all Greek Société Anonyme amdited Liability Companies that are required to @mep
statutory audited financial statements must obfaom the appointed certified auditors an “AnnualxTa
Certificate” as stipulated in par. 5 of Article & Law 2238/1994, which is issued following a tanda
performed by the legally appointed auditor or audin that audits the annual financial statemetdpon
completion of the tax audit, the legally appointedditor or auditing firm issues to the company axT
Compliance Report” and then the legally appointeditar or auditing firm submits it to the Ministof Finance
electronically no later than ten days from the Wate of approval of the company’s financial statata by the
General Meeting of the Shareholders. The MinistfyFmance will choose a sample of certain companies
representing at least 9% which will be re-auditgdHe competent auditing services of the Ministijhe audit by
the Ministry of Finance must be completed withirpexiod of eighteen months from the date when thax"T
Compliance Report" was submitted to the Ministryofance.

A table presenting in detail the unaudited tax gedrall the consolidated companies is provideNate 8.

Tax on profit before tax of the company is diffar&iem the theoretical amount that would arise & used the
weighted average tax rate of the company's cowftegtablishment, as follows:

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to P Jan to
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13*

Profit/(loss) before tax (41,558) 27,118 6,288 26,907
Tax on profit calculated using the current taxsatpplied
in the respective countries 1,057 6,889 1837 7,066
Adjustments
Income not subject to tax (631) (1,028) (269) (753)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 6,849 3,212 2,595 2,865
Prior years' taxes and other duties (360) (201) (47) (574)
Use of tax losses from prior fiscal years (3,979) (3,098) (3,421) (2,922)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset wagyrezed 2,216 2,421 1,171 1,715
Effect of change in tax rate - 2,248 - 1,745
Income tax 5,153 10,443 1,865 9,141

The average tax rate for the Group for FY2014 i§4% (2013: 25.40%), while the weighted averagedde is -
12.40% (2013: 38.51%).

The average tax rate for the Company for FY2012Bi21% (2013: 26.26%), while the weighted averagerate
is 29.67% (2013*: 33.97%).

The amount of income tax charged for Other Comprsike Income is:
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GROUP
All amounts in Euro thousands.
1-Jan to 31-Dec-14 1-Jan to 31-Dec-13
Before Tax Tax
Tax (debit)/credit  After Tax Before Tax (debit)/credit  After Tax
Foreign exchange differences 5,512 - 5,512 (3.123) - (3,123)
Falr value gains/(losses) on available for sale 68,269 ) 68,269 (83,012) ) (83,012)
financial assets
Cash flow hedge (225) - (225) - - -
Actuarial gains/(losses) (768) 200 (568) 367 (95) 271
Effect of change in the tax rate on actuarial R - R . 60 60
gains/(losses)
Other - - - (43) 11 (33)
Other Comprehensive Income 72,788 200 72,988 (85,812) (24) (85,836)
COMPANY
All amounts in Euro thousands.
1-Jan to 31-Dec-14 1-Jan to 31-Dec-13
Before Tax Tax
Tax (debit)/credit  After Tax Before Tax (debit)/credit  After Tax

Foreign exchange differences 1,179 - 1,179 (1,379) - (1,379)
Fair value gains/(losses) on available for sale
financial assets (90) ) (90) 384 . 384
Cash flow hedge (225) - (225) - - -
Actuarial gains/(losses) (663) 173 (490) 285 (74) 211
Effect of change in the tax rate on actuarial - B - . 47 47
gains/(losses)

201 173 374 (710) 27) (737)

Other Comprehensive Income

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).

33 Dividends per share

The Board of Directors has decided not to distebditvidends for FY2014. This decision is subjecapproval
from annual General Meeting of Shareholders todde im June 2014.

34 Commitments

The following amounts represent commitments forratieg leases from Group subsidiaries, which asséd
from third parties.

All amounts in Euro thousands.

GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13
Up to 1 year 1,394 156 1,394 156
From 1 to 5 years 1,278 533 1,278 533
Over 5 years - 115 - 115
Total 2,672 803 2,672 803
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35 Contingent assets and liabilities

(a) The Group faces legal claims for labour acdisl@rhich occurred during the execution of constaucprojects

by companies or joint arrangements in which theuprparticipates. Because the Group is fully insuagdinst

labour accidents, no substantial outflows are ga@ted as a result of legal proceedings againsGtioeip. Other

litigations or disputes referred to arbitrationvesl as pending court or arbitration rulings aré¢ expected to have
a material effect on the financial position or tygerations of the Group or the Company, and far teason no
relevant provisions have been formed.

(b) From 2011 onwards, all Greek Societe Anonymd himited Liability Companies that are required to
prepare statutory audited financial statements wlistin an “Annual Tax Certificate” as stipulatedoiaragraph 5
of Article 82 of L.2238/1994. The “Annual Tax Géidate” must be issued by the same statutory audit audit
firm that issues the audit opinion on the statutimancial statements. Upon completion of the taxlia the
statutory auditor or audit firm must issue to thmtitg a "Tax Compliance Report" which will subseqtlg be
submitted electronically to the Ministry of Finand®y the statutory auditor or audit firm. This "T@ompliance
Report" must be submitted to the Ministry of Finanwithin ten days from the date of approval of financial
statements by the General Meeting of Shareholddws.Ministry of Finance will subsequently selecamnple of
at least 9% of all companies for which a "Tax Campte Report" has been submitted for the performaria
tax audit by the relevant auditors from the Ministif Finance. The audit by the Ministry of Finanoeist be
completed within a period of eighteen months fréwa date when the "Tax Compliance Report" was subdib
the Ministry of Finance.

Unaudited tax years for consolidated Group compaaie disclosed in Note 8. Group tax liabilities foese
years have not been finalised yet and thereforatiaddl charges may arise when the relevant aualits
performed by tax authorities. The parent companyT@R SA has not been tax audited for FY2010, has tee
audited according to L.2238/1994 for FY2011, FY20dad FY2013 and has received an unqualified tax
compliance certificate from PricewaterhouseCoof&s

In note 8, the Group companies bearing the markn(the column of unaudited tax years are compathigisare
established in Greece, are subject to mandatory bydudit firms and have received a tax compléacertificate
for FY2011, FY2012 and FY2013ccording to the relevant legislation, the tax lidies for financial years 2012
and 2013 shall be considered finalised after egghtaonths from the date when the ‘Tax CompliangeoRehas
been submitted to the Ministry of Finance. Accogditm Circular POL 1236/18.10.2013 of the Ministrf o
Finance, FY 2011 is considered finalised on 30 |A&3014.

(c) The Group has contingent liabilities in relatim banks, other guarantees, and other matteraitisa from its
normal business activity and from which no subsghohanges are expected to arise.

36 Related party transactions

The aggregate amounts of sales and purchases fiiveginning of the year, as well as the closirigrizs of
receivables and liabilities at year end, which hasilted from transactions with related partiedenAS 24, are
as follows:

All amounts in Euro thousands

GROUP COMPANY
1% Jan to ' Jan to
31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13*
a) Sales of goods and services 136,794 87,621 125,158 84,603
Sales to subsidiaries - - 4,893 8,931
Sales to associates 231 324 80 3
Sales to related parties 136,564 87,297 120,186 75,670
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b) Purchases of goods and services

Purchases from subsidiaries

Purchases from related parties
c) Dividend income

d) Key management compensation

a) Receivables
Receivables from subsidiaries
Receivables from associates
Receivables from other related parties
b) Liabilities
Payables to subsidiaries
Payables to associates
Payables to other related parties
c) Borrowings
Payables to subsidiaries
Payables to associates
Payables to other related parties

4,970 9,291 31,032 22,130
- - 22,541 14,157
4,970 9,291 8,491 7,973
- - 5,045 -
3,574 3,222 3,324 2,141
GROUP COMPANY
31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13 31-Dec-14  31-Dec-13*
63,913 50,852 259,933 229,320
- - 205,241 189,772
2,479 1,236 526 17
61,434 49,616 54,165 39,531
27,985 30,189 97,340 60,891
- - 45,151 17,811
147 350 - 101
27,838 29,838 52,190 42,979
6,679 6,130 342 2,716
- - - 2,716
342 - 342 -
6,337 6,130 - -

*Restated due to revised IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangesigmiote 2.2.2).
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37 Other notes

1. No liens exist regarding non-current assets.

2. At 31.12.2014 the Company had 3,305 and the Greag0demployees (excluding J/Vs), while at 31.12301
they employed 2,154 and 2,728 people respectively.

3. At 27.11.2014 was announced the signing of theraohfor the Sebes — Turda Motorway Lot 2 Project i
Romania by the subsidiary AKTOR SA, as the leadeh® Partnership AKTOR S.A.- EUROCONSTRUCT
TRADING’98 SRL (holding a 51% share). The Contracto-funded by the Cohesion Fund (85%) and the
Romanian State (15%), through the Sectoral OperatiBrogramme "Transport". The value of the comtrac
amounts to RON 549 mil. (~ euro 122 mil.). Theadian of the construction project is 22 months @nths
for the study and 18 months for the construction & expected to be completed in September 2016.

4. In December 2014, the "Licensing Agreement on Rebemto and Operation of the State Lignite Mine in
the Vevi area in the Regional Entity of Florina" svsigned between the Greek Ministry of Environment,
Energy and Climate Change and the subsidiary AKT®R The signing of the Licensing Agreement
constitutes the last from a series of procedureshi® reopening of the lignite mine in Vevi, whialill be
completed with the ratification of the agreementtyy Greek Parliament. The reopening of the lignitee
of Vevi in Florina is particularly important, bott regional and national level, as it can contebiat the
country's energy adequacy. With the reopening ®fiinite mine are created approximately 500 funliet job
positions and also approximately 2,000 indirectgolitions. The contract refers to the mining od 1@ns of
lignite and it also enables the exploitation ofsa#int deposits owned by PPC. The contract stipukateong
others: a) Leasing of the field for fifteen yeandtially, with net income for the Greek State exgecto
exceed euro 150 mil. b) Environmental protectionjguts that are not limited to the currently apgile
legislation, but exceed the amount of euro 26 foilthe 15-year period.

5. The total fees paid to the Group's appointed éedtibuditors for the statutory audit of the anrfirsincial

statements of FY2014 amount to euro 403 th. (2@L8o 406 th.). For the current financial periodfees
were paid for other services (2013: euro 96 th.).
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38 Events after the reporting date

1. In the beginning of 2015, the parent company AKTSR proceeded to the long-term refinancing of its
loans amounting to euro 78.8 mil.

Kifissia, 31 March 2015

THE CHAIRMAN OF THE THE ACCOUNTING
BOARD OF DIRECTORS THE MANAGING DIRECTOR THE HEAD OF ACCOUNTING MANAGER

DIMITRIOS P. HARALAMBOS |I. OLGA S. SOFIANOU
DIMITRIOS A. KOUTRAS KALLITSANTSIS NIANIAKOUDIS SOFIANOU
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